VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: 30 JTB-GTTN Thai Nguyen, April .04 2025

NOTICE

On the organization
of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
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To: Distinguished Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation

Based on the Consolidated List of Securities Owners of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation (securities code: TIS) as of the record date March 25, 2025, to

exercise the right to attend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 provzded by
the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation;

The Board of Directors.of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation would
like to respectfully announce to all shareholders of the Corporation "On the organization of

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation" with the following details:

1. Time: 7:30, Saturday, April 26, 2025.
2. Location: Main Hall of the Cultural Center of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock

Corporation (Group 3, Huong Son Ward - Thai Nguyen City, Thai Nguyen Province).
3. Participants:

a) Shareholders named in the list of securities owners of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel

Joint Stock Corporation as of the record date March 25, 2025, prepared by the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation.

b) Members of the Corporation's Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Board of
General Directors, and invited guests.

4. Nbi dung: Théo ludn va thong qua cic vin d& sau:

a) Content: Discussion and approval of the following matters:

a) Report on the evaluation of business production performance, evaluation of the
Board of Directors' activities in 2024; direction of operations for 2025 of the Corporation.

b) Report of the Corporation's Board of Supervisors on activities in 2024 and
operational plan for 2025; Audit Report on the Corporation's 2024 Financial Statements.

¢) Proposals from the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2025:

- Proposal regarding the approval of the Separate Fmanmal Statements for the
accounting period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

- Proposal regarding the approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
accounting period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

- Proposal regarding the profit distribution for 2024 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation.

- Proposal regarding Approval of the 2025 Business and Development Investment Plan
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

- Proposal regarding signing contracts with Thai Hung Trading Joint-Stock Company.
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- Proposal regarding signing contracts with Thai Trung Steel Rolling Joint Stock
Company.

- Proposal regarding salary and remuneration levels for members of the Board of
Directors, General Director, Deputy General Directors, Board of Supervisors, and Chief
Accountant of the Corporation in 2025.

- Proposal regarding the selection of an independent auditing company to audit the
Financial Statements for 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.
- Other matters within the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders (if any)

5. Meeting documents:

Documents related to the meeting's content will be posted on the Corporation's website
from April 4, 2025. Shareholders are kindly requested to download all meeting documents
from the Corporation's website: www.tisco.com.vn, in the shareholders relations section.

6. Registration for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025:

- To facilitate the organizing committee in receiving and arranging seats for
shareholders attending the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen
Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, the organizing committee respectfully requests that
shareholders attending the meeting or authorizing others to attend please register and confirm
with the Finance Team of the Finance and Accounting Department of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation (Mr. Vi Quoc Hung - Finance and Accounting Department of"
the Corporation (felephone: 02083832678, mobile: 0912084792, fax: 02083836907)),
registration period from the date of notice until 16:30 on April 18, 2025, or you may send

voting opinions (voting form announced on www.tisco.com.vn) to the orgamzmg committee
at least 01 day before the meeting,.

- Documents for registration of authorization for others to attend the meeting,
confirmation of meeting attendance include: Letter of Authorization, copy of ID card or
citizen card or passport of the shareholder; [D card or citizen card or passport of the
authorized person. The confirmation form and authorization letter for meeting attendance can
be downloaded from the "Shareholder Relations" section of the website www.tisco.com.vn.

For any questions, please contact Mr. Nguyen Ba Tai - Corporate Secretary (telephone,
mobile: 0913068188), and Mr. Vi Quoc Hung - Finance and Accounting Departmant of the
Corporation (felephone: 02083832678, mobile: 0912084 792).

Respectfully announced./.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF
- As above; THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Members of the BOD, BOS of the Corporation; CHAIRMAN
- General Director, Deputy General Directors of the Lopr=—
Corporation; ' /;';faj‘,“lﬂ'i'j_
- Units, departments of the Corporation; "CONGTY \»O
- Posted on the news and www.tisco.com.vn; (;’ c () PH AN
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THAI NGUYEN &
\’E-F:f Pt " ‘_\“A/
\\'.G(‘Vﬂﬂ 1 ‘\\)’,';_-;,"’

""""" “‘Nghiem Xuan Da



VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION : SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL

ence - Freedom - Happi
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 38 /BC-GTTN ~-Thai Nguyen, April 142025

. REPORT |
Of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

Parf One \
EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE RESULTS IN 2024

I. RESULTS OF IMPLEMENTING THE PLAN OBJECTIVES 2024

1. Evaluation of the implementation of Resolution of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 2024: '

-~ The Resolution of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2024 was
implemented in a context where the global economy faced many major challenges
and slow growth. Geopolitical tensions continued to increase, especially the Russia-
Ukraine war and conflicts in the Middle East, which had major impacts on global
trade and energy.

- Domestically, the Government actively implemented policies to promote
public investment, solutions to remove difficulties for the real estate market, and
major infrastructure projects were accelerated, such as the S00KV circuit 3 project,
the North-South expressway, and new industrial zones... helping steel demand
improve compared to 2023, although still at a low level.

- Low market demand created pressure on the prices of raw materials such as
iron ore, coal, and scrap steel. Prices of raw materials and finished products in the
steel industry fluctuated unpredictably; the gap between finished steel prices and raw

material prices narrowed, affecting the business efficiency of most steel industry
units. '

- For the Corporation: In addition to the impacts from the global and domestic
situation, the Corporation had to face internal difficulties and challenges:

+ Most of the technological equipment lines are old, outdated, with low
synchronization, especially in: Iron smelting, Steel smelting, Coking, leading to a
large workforce, low labor productivity, and high consumption targets.

+ The Corporation has not completed the legal procedures related to the
reissuance of mining licenses for some raw material mine sites, resulting in low
exploitation output and failure to maximize the advantages of available raw materials;
significantly affecting product costs and competitiveness.

+ The Phase 2 production expansion project has been suspended since 2013,
which has greatly affected the financial situation, business production performance,
and reputation of the Corporation in recent years.
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- Additionally, adverse effects from weather, floods, and scheduled power cuts,
maintenance, and load reduction from the power sector have affected the balancing
and organization of the Corporation's production, causing many difficulties,
incidents, production interruptions, and incurring additional costs. In particular, the
impact of Typhoon No. 3 caused widespread flooding in Thai Nguyen province in
September 2024; some of the Corporation's mining sites had to temporarily suspend
operations to prevent typhoons and floods and to remedy damages after the typhoon.

Faced with extremely difficult business conditions, the Corporation has actively
implemented many flexible solutions in production organization, cost savings, cost
reduction... closely following market developments and in line with actual conditions,
maintaining stable business production operations, ensuring jobs and income for
employees. The business production results for 2024 show that most targets exceeded
the plan and increased compared to 2023. ‘

II. RESULTS OF IMPLEMENTING THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS RESOLUTION
1. Business production results for 2024:
Implementing Resolution No. 59/NQ-GTTN dated April 19, 2024, of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2024. The results of implementing the 2024
plan are as follows:

2024 ACTUAL
2023 COMPARISON (%)
No. INDICATOR UNIT ACTUAL 2024 PLAN
Total Compared | Compared
to 2023 to 2024
‘ Actual Plan
A B C 1 2 3 4=3/1 5=3/2
Industrial production | Billion
1 | value (actual price) VND 9,450 9,494 10,602 112% 112%
Metallurgical  coke
2 | production Ton 109,276 115,000 88,966 81% 77%
Blast furnace pig iron
production - 185,449 | 200,000 197,984 107% 99%
4 | Bteslbillier produetion |~ « 282,900 | 200,000 | 277,505 98% | 139%
Rolled steel
5 | production - 640,646 645,000 752,201 117% 117%
Rolled steel
6 | consumption “ 639,070 645,000 747,739 117% 116%
Total revenue Billion
7 VND 13,401 12,953 15,514 116% 120%
Profit before tax Billion
8 VND -176.621 15.000 0.668 4%
Budget contribution Billion
9 VND 215.015 221915 187.329 87% 84%
1o | Average workforce Person 3,399 3335 3,48 95.6 97.6
Million
11 | Average salary erI\SIODrfj 9.2 9.034 9.9 107.6 110
month




2. Main management and direction activities:

- Anticipating continued market difficulties, the Corporation strengthened
management, direction, and coordinated contro! throughout the organization from the
beginning of the year, It actively and decisively implemented many flexible solutions- -
in production organization, cost savings, and cost reduction, striving to mamtam
production and ensure jobs and income for employees.

- The Corporation reviewed, amended, and supplemented regulations and rules
on its management. It directed units and departments to develop appropriate
restructuring plans to ensure efficiency and streamlining.

- It decisively directed product sales, developmg many flexible mechamsms and
policies according to market developments and applying flexible support
mechanisms to supply steel to key projects in Thai Nguyen province and other
provinces.

- The Corporation implemented technical solutions in production stages,
reviewed technical and economic targets, controlled the quality of raw materials and
rolled steel products, and focused on directing good occupational safety and
environmental protection work. - It strengthened inspection and supervision of
equipment management, operation, repair, and maintenance processes, ensuring
stable and continuous operation of production lines.

- Tt focused on directing financial work and cost-reduction solutions; inspected
and guided units in implementing financial management regulations and procurement
of materials and equipment; strengthened and strictly controlled sales activities and
inventory control; and actively pursued debt collection.

- The Corporation strengthened coordination within the system to increase
common benefits. It continued to implement directives as required by higher
management agencies to resolve difficulties and obstacles of the Phase 2 Project and
stabilize business production.

3. Development investment work
3.1. Phase 2 production expansion project:

- In 2024, following the direction of the Government, the Commission for the
Management of State Capital at Enterprises, the State Capital Investment
Corporation, and Vietnam Steel Corporation, the Corporation coordinated with MCC
and independent consultants to conduct equipment inventory at the site; researched,
developed, and reported to competent authorities on the next treatment plan for the

Project; regularly maintained protection and preservation of equipment, prevented
asset loss, and limited equipment damage.

- Mobilized and supplemented human resources, strengthened the Steering
Committee and working groups to terminate and liquidate the EPC contract with the
MCC contractor through a practical agreement. Currently developing the next
treatment plan for the Phase 2 Project.

3.2. Other projects:
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- For the South Lang Cam Bituminous Coal Mining Project: To date, the
Corporation has supplemented and completed the EIA documentation and is
submitting it to the Ministry of Agriculture and Environment for appraisal and
approval; The Project's Feasibility Study Report has been appraised by the Thai
Nguyen Department of Industry and Trade, and procedures for project approval are
being implemented as a basis for requesting the reissuance of the Mineral
Exploitation License.

- For the South Lang Cam Bituminous Coal Mining Project (Am Hon area), the
Corporation is currently coordinating with consulting units to supplement and
complete the EIA documentation and Feasibility Study Report (according to the EIA
Appraisal Council's opinions) to seek appraisal opinions from the state management
agency for construction (Department of Industry and Trade) before submitting to the
Ministry of Agriculture and Environment for EIA appraisal and approval.

- For Group C investment projects (iron ore exploration schemes): The
Corporation is implementing legal procedures to be granted exploration permits for
‘mine sites as prescribed.

- For investment items for procurement and upgrading of fixed assets: In 2024,
04 items have been completed; 03 items are being implemented, and the remaining
items have been temporarily suspended due to inability to arrange funding sources.

4. Restructuring work:

Issued Document No. 133/GTTN-TCLD and Document No. 134/GTTN-TCLD
on March 6, 2024, providing guidelines for reviewing and developing restructuring
and labor arrangement plans. The Corporation also organized inspections of
organizational structure and labor workforce restructuring at member units in 2024.
The workforce as of December 31, 2024, was 3,199 people, a reduction of 146
employees compared to December 31, 2023.

5. Other work:

- Directed the Corporation's capital representatives at other enterprises to report
on the preparation of agenda items for the General Meeting of Shareholders of
companies with TISCO's capital contribution; simultaneously conducted procedures
for the General Director to direct capital representatives and authorized persons to
vote on matters at the General Meeting of Shareholders of enterprises with capital
contribution and other matters in accordance with legal regulations and the Capital
Representative Management Regulations of the Corporation.

- Continued to promote awareness about the situation, tasks, and key solutions in
management and administration of the Corporation to help employees understand
correctly, unite, agree, share, and perform their duties well.

- Completed the renovation and restoration of the Ho Chi Minh Memorial Site
commemorating the President's visit to Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Industrial Zone on
schedule and with quality.

- Regarding social life: The Corporation and its member units have taken good
care of the material and spiritual well-being of employees, and employee benefits and
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policies have been addressed promptly; during holidays and Tet, the Corporation
distributed additional annual wages of over 46 billion VND; organized visits to
employees' families with particularly difficult circumstances, policy families,
employees affected by Typhoon No. 3-Yagi, met and presented gifts on War Invalids
and Martyrs' Day (July 27); organized periodic health check-ups for employees,
occupational disease screening, birthday celebrations, visits, funerals, and weddings;
implemented “Meals of Gratitude for Employees” and “Trade Union Meals”...

- Regarding humanitarian and charitable work: The Corporation participated in
the "Tet for the Poor" Program, the New Rural Development Program, organized gift-
giving to Thai Nguyen province's social protection centers, Agent Orange victims,
households with particularly difficult circumstances; supported outdoor sports
equipment for Phuong Giao commune, Vo Nhai district, supported the people of Thai
Nguyen province affected by Typhoon No. 3, and also supported associations, wards,
and schools in the area. In 2024, the total expenditure for social charity work was
over 1.35 billion VND.

HI. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ACTIVITIES IN 2024
1. Activities of the Board of Directors

The year 2024 faced many difficulties and challenges. With a high sense of
responsibility, the Board of Directors developed and issued resolutions, while
actively coordinating with the Corporation's Board of Management to decisively
implement solutions to overcome difficulties, ensure the maintenance of business
production activities, save costs, reduce product costs, limit risks, care for the well-
being, maintain empioyment income, and benefits for employees.

The activities of the Board of Directors always closely followed the actual
situation of the Corporation, supporting and ensuring effectiveness in the activities of
the Board of Management. In 2024, the meeting regime of the Board of Directors was
implemented in accordance with the Board of Directors' Operatmnal Regulations and
the Corporation's Charter.

The Board of Directors organized 05 meetings (04 quarterly regular meetings)
and sought voting opinions 1 writing via email. The quarterly regular meetings
focused on reviewing and evaluating the implementation results of the Board of
Management, while also discussing and approving guidelines, directions, and tasks
assigned to the Board of Management for implementation in the following quarters.
The resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors were issued promptly, in
accordance with legal regulations and the Corporation's Charter. In 2024, the
Corporation's Board of Directors issued 39 Resolutions and 10 Decisions,
unanimously approving various management tasks according to the Board of
Directors' Operational Regulations and the Corporation's Charter; Through the Board
of Directors' meetings, the members provided opinions on important activities of the
Corporation and made decisions on guidelines and directions in production, business,
{inance, technology, and restructuring in 2024.
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The Board of Directors successfully directed the organization of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders; The General Meeting approved the reports
and proposals of the Corporation's Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors;

The Board focused on evaluating the implementation results of the Board of
Directors' resolutions and decisions, analyzing monthly and quarterly business
production results to have positive and proactive solutions for implementing the
targets and tasks approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. It
directed the promotion of business production, capacity utilization, product quality
assurance, cost savings, cost reduction; ensured occupational safety and
environmental hygiene; continued to implement restructuring work.

Information disclosure was carried out to ensure accuracy, timeliness, and
compliance with content regulations.

In general, the Board of Directors has performed its duties decisively, focusing
on strategy formulation, making accurate and timely decisions to direct business
production, strengthening supervision of the Board of Management's activities,
ensuring a harmonious balance of interests for the Corporation, shareholders, and
employees' rights.

2. Supervision of the Board of Management

In 2024, the Board of Directors effectively supervised the activities of the Board
of General Directors, units, and departments of the Corporation to ensure strict
implementation of the Corporation's regulations and compliance with laws related to
enterprise management and implementation of business production tasks, application
of technical solutions in production stages, cost reduction, and cost-cutting. At the
same time, it closely followed the actual situation of the Corporation to provide
guidelines and policies to promptly direct and create favorable conditions for the
Board of Management to perform business production tasks, and organize the
implementation of the Corporation's regulations in a synchronized manner.

The Board of Directors' supervision of the Board of General Directors' activities
was always a focus and ensured that the Board of Management implemented
activities according to the Corporation's strategic direction. Through inspection and
supervision, the Board of Directors grasped the operational situation, results of
business production plan implementation of the Corporation and its member units to
have measures for timely direction and guidance for functional departments and
units.

3. Evaluation of the Board of Directors' responsibility fulfillment

Given the difficulties caused by ongoing conflicts between countries with major
impacts on global trade and energy; the strong and unpredictable fluctuations in the
market for materials and raw materials, which affected the Corporation's business
production activities and efficiency.

Amid extremely difficult business conditions in 2024, the Board of Directors
proactively identified and correctly analyzed the situation, set goals and directions
appropriate to the actual circumstances. Simultaneously, it put forth many
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management solutions, directed and decisively implemented solutions to leverage the
advantages  and existing internal resources of the Corporation to overcome
difficulties, ensure the maintenance of business production activities, save costs,
reduce product costs, limit risks, care for the well-being, maintain employment,
income, and benefits for employees. The results of implementing the targets all met
and exceeded the plan, except for the profit target which was not achieved.

| IL. Part Two
OPERATIONAL DIRECTION FOR 2025

1. SITUATION CHARA CTERISTICS
1. Global and domestic markets:

- The global economy in 2025 is forecast to have many unpredictable
fluctuations. Military conflicts, political changes, and escalating instability in some
countries and regions; policy adjustments by major countries pose risks that could
impact financial and monetary market stability, energy security, food security, and
regional and global geopolitical issues.

- The domestic economic situation is forecasted to have positive growth
prospects, with public investment being promoted, along with the completion of
planning at various levels, and the real estate market is expected to recover and
flourish... these factors will have positive impacts on the steel industry. However,
manufacturing enterprises will continue to face difficulties such as: The increase in
cheap steel imports from China may put pressure on domestic enterprises, raw
material prices like iron ore and coking coal may fluctuate strongly, affecting market
share, production costs, and profits of steel enterprises; importing countries may
apply trade defense measures such as anti-dumping duties on Vietnamese steel,
affecting export capabilities and creating competitive pressure domestically.

2. For the Corporation:

- Raw material and finished steel prices are forecast to continue to evolve in
complex ways in the context of weak demand and fierce competition, directly
affecting production balance, costs, pricing, and business efficiency of the
Corporation. '

- The Corporation's mining area continues to face many difficulties, legal
procedures for re-issuing mining permits for sites at Phan Me Coal Mine are
experiencing delays, so coal mining activities are limited, self-mined coal output is

declining, and the advantages of self-produced raw materials are not being
maximized.

~ The production area (Coking, Iron smelting, Steel smelting) has old and
outdated equipment and technology, leading to high consumption, higher production
costs and prices compared to the market average, reducing competitiveness, and
affecting the Corporation's efficiency.
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- The delay of the Phase 2 Project continues to affect the Corporation's financial
situation, making arrangements for business production capital very difficult with
narrowed financial limits, higher loan interest rates compared to the general market
level...

- Despite these difficulties, the Corporation always receives attention,
leadership, direction, and favorable conditions from the Party, Government; Central
Committees, Ministries, and branches; Vietnam Steel Corporation, Thai Nguyen
province, and sharcholders and partners. Along with that, the Iron and Steel
workforce is dedicated, experienced, has overcome many difficulties and challenges,
always united, agreeing, highly determined, promoting intelligence, proactively
performing assigned tasks well; The TISCO Steel brand still maintains its reputation
in the market.

In this context, the Corporation has developed its business production plan for
2025 as follows:

II. TARGETS AND KEY SOLUTIONS FOR IMPLEMENTING THE 2025
BUSINESS PRODUCTION PLAN TASKS

1. Main targets for 2025

No. INDICATOR UNIT 2025 PLAN | NOTES
Industrial production value B
1 (actual prige) SR 9,991
Metallurgical coke |
2 | production Ton 90,000
Blast furnace pig iron
3 production « 175,000
4 Steel billet production « 255,000
5 Rolled steel production e 730,000
6 Rolled steel consumption u 730,000
7 Total revenue (Separate) Billion VND 14,190
g | Profit before tax (Separate) Billion VND 10,686
o | Budget contribution Billion VND 201
10 | Average workforce Person 3,197
11 | Average salary e 10.405
VND/person/month

2. Main management and administration solutions

- Strictly implement higher-level directives, continue to maintain stable business
production activities, ensure jobs and income for employees.

- Continue to strengthen the implementation of comprehensive cost-saving
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solutions across all stages and areas of operation to enhance product competitiveness.
Focus on promoting product sales, organizing systems and reviewing operating
methods, mechanisms, and policies to encourage increased consumption; Maximize
exploitation of market areas, existing distribution channels, including exports,
diversify product lines to boost consumption volume.

- Continue to implement raw material preparation for production on a cautious,
safe basis, optimally balancing between self-produced and purchased raw materials,
controlling inventory to limit risks; strictly controlling prices and quality of 1mported
raw materials and supplies.

- Organize flexible production suitable to market developments and the
Corporation's actual production conditions; quickly complete legal procedures to
accelerate coal mining; apply reasonable material mix structures in main production
stages to maximize the advantages of fat coal and iron ore mining; maintain good
control of raw material and finished product inventory.

- Focus on financial work, ensure cash flow to maintain business production
activities; actively urge debt collection.

- Continue to exploit and effectively use management software, electronic
office; implement personnel management software, salary, and digitize documents
synchronously from the Corporation to units.

- Continue to implement restructuring work; implement directives as required by
higher management agencies to terminate the EPC contract with MCC and
subcontracts, develop an optimal plan to handle the Phase 2 Project and stabilize
business production.

- The mass organizations in the Corporation, under the leadership of the Party
Committee, will organize emulation movements in production and labor, stabilize
jobs, income, and take care of the material and spiritual welfare of employees, while
also doing good ideological work for employees; visit and present gifts to policy
families and families in difficult circumstances in a practical and effective manner.

- Continue to seek support from the Government, Central Ministries and
branches, Thai Nguyen province, SCIC, and Vietnam Steel Corporation; coordinate
closely with units in the system; strengthen more decisively in directing and
coordinating between departments and units to have good coordination in business
production work, ensuring efficiency.

3. Development investment work

3.1. Phase 2 production expansion project: Continue to implement related
content as directed by competent authorities to terminate and liquidate EPC Contract
No. 0I#EPC/TISCO-MCC and Part C construction subcontracts according to
practical agreements to minimize losses. Urgently develop the next treatment plan for
the project after terminating EPC Contract No. 01# to ensure optimal efficiency, in
accordance with regulations.

3.2. Other investment projects:
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- Implement development investment projects in 2025 ensuring compliance with
legal regulations and in line with the Corporation's business production situation.

- Continue to closely follow state management agencies, urgently complete legal
documents related to mineral exploitation projects to quickly obtain reissued Mineral
Exploitation Licenses at the Corporation's mine sites.

4. Restructuring work:

- Continue to supplement content on restructuring the organizational apparatus
and arranging labor; urge and guide units to continue organizing and streamlining the
apparatus, restructuring the Corporation's workforce reasonably, improving labor
quality, aiming to reduce an average of at least 15% of management and management
support staff compared to the current workforce.

- Research and apply digital transformation in labor management, digitize
documents and files, implement unified personnel management software throughout
the Corporation.

5. Other work:

- Strengthen management and direction of the Corporation's capital
representatives at other enterprises; closely coordinate with the BOD/Board of
Management of enterprises with capital contribution to successfully implement their
business production plan objectives to maximize the effectiveness of investment
capital, while better performing roles and responsibilities according to the
Corporation's Capital Representative Management Regulations.

- Strengthen the leadership of Party committees at all levels, promote activities
and enhance the role of mass organizations. Coordinate to organize emulation
movements with specific objectives, maintain cultural, sports, and corporate culture
activities; fully implement regimes and benefits, focus on caring for and motivating
employees, maintaining stable jobs and income for employees; actively participate in
local movements, support charitable social activities initiated by local and central
authorities.

IITI. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2025
1. Activities of the Board of Directors

- The Board of Directors will continue to strengthen its direction, inspection, and
supervision of the Board of Management in effectively implementing the Resolutions
and Decisions of the Board of Directors to successfully achieve the Corporation's
objectives and directions. At the same time, continue to strengthen the control,
management of capital and the Corporation's representatives at other enterprises.

- Continue to closely follow and monitor the developments in the world and
domestic economy and the Corporation's business production activities, proactively
analyze and grasp the situation to make correct assessments and judgments, thereby
promptly making decisions, management measures, and appropriate directions,
guiding the Board of Management to organize the implementation of tasks with the
highest efficiency.
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- Direct the amendment and supplementation of corporate governance
regulations and rules to suit the actual situation, assign specific tasks to Board of
Directors members, while continuing to maintain the organization of meeting regimes
in accordance with regulations.

2. Supefvision by the Board of Directors

Following the Board of Directors' 2025 activity program, the Board of Directors
will continue to strengthen supervision of the Board of Management to ensure strict
implementation of the Corporation's regulations and compliance with current laws.
Set objectives, directions, and guide the Board of General Directors to organize the
implementation of the Management's resolutions and decisions with the highest
efficiency.

The Corporation's tasks for 2025 and subsequent years are very challenging with
many difficulties and obstacles. However, with the efforts of the entire team, along
with a tradition of over 65 years of construction and development, this will create
more confidence, strength, and valuable experiences for the team to confidently
continue to perform their assigned tasks well. This is an important premise for the
Corporation to confidently overcome difficulties and successfully implement the
objectives and plans set forth.

The Corporation's Board of Directors hopes to continue receiving the sharing
and suggestions from shareholders to help the Board of Directors' activities improve
further, for the development of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation./.

ON BEHALF OF
Recipients: :
- Members of the BOD, BOS; THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Shareholders; CHAIRMAN
- General Director of the Corporation; Z=s100
- Deputy General Directors of the Corporation; Vs @5 _ .
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VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL

Ihdependence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION :

- No.:: 148 /BC-GTIN - Thai Nguyen, April 102025

REPORT

~ On the Activities of the Board of Supervisors
Submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

To: Annual General Méeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

In fulfilling the functions and duties of the Board of Supervisors according to
the Enterprise Law, the Charter of organization and operation of That Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, the Board of Supervisors of the Corporation
respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders the results of supervision
and inspection for 2024, the operational plan for 2025, and the Audit Report on the

Financial Statements 2024 of the Corporation as follows:

_ L RESULTS OF ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN
2024
- 1. Activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024
In 2024, the Board of Supervisors closely followed Resolution No. 59/NQ-
GTTN dated April 19, 2024, of the General Meeting of Sharecholders of the
Corporation, developed an operational program to implement the following tasks:
- Conducted supervision and inspection of the reasonableness, legality,
truthfulness, and level of prudence in the management and administration of business
‘production activities of the Corporation and its member units. Supervised the
impiémentation of the Law and the regulations that the Corporation has issued.

- Examined the procedures for issuing documents of the Corporation compared
with the provisions of the Law and the Charter of the Corporation with respect to the
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management
in management and administration.

- Audited the Separate Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial
Statements for 2023; prepared the Report of the Board of Supervisors on the results

of inspection and supervision in 2023 to submit to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024 of the Corporation.
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2. Self-assessment report on the performance of the BOS and BOS members in 2024

Based on the Charter of organization and operation of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation, the Opérational Regulations of the Board of
Supervisors, the rights and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors, the Board of
SuperVisors and its members self-assess as follows:

- The Board of Supervisors has performed in accordance with the rights and
responsibilities stipulated in the Corporation's Charter and the Operational
Regulations of the Board of Supervisors in supervising the BOD and Board of

‘Management in governance and administration. The Reports of the Board of
Supervis_ors have been issued according to proper procedures and processes as per
the Enterprise Law and the Corporation's Charter.
- Members of the Board of Supervisors have fully participated in all meetings
of the Board of Supervisors; were invited to attend meetings of the Board of
Directors; participated in some monthly plan assignment meetings of the General
Director to stay informed about the Corporation's operational situation,

| - Conducted control of the Corporation's member units according to plan and
specific topics at Tien Bo Iron Mine, Railway Transportation Enterprise, Thai
Nguyen Steel Rolling Factory, Coking Plant, Iron Making Factory, Luu Xa Steel

~Rolling Factory, .Luu Xa Steel Making Factory to assess the compliance of units with
the Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors, Directives of the General
Director of the Corporation, and State regulations on production management, cost
management, pricing, and consumption norms. Through inspection and supervision,
the Board of Supervisors found that the units have strictly complied with State

regulations as well as those of the Corporation.

-3. Salary, remuneration of the Board of Supervisors (Excluding holidéy and Tet

bonuses)
Salary,
No. Name Position remuneration Notes
in 2024
1 Tran Anh Dung Head of the 252,000,000
Board
2 Nguyen Thi Hue | Member 108,000,000




1 o Dismissed from
3 | Tran Quoc .Vlet Member - 12,788,462 April 19, 2024
o ' Appointed from
4 .
- Nguyen Hong Van | Member 29,211,538 April 19, 2024
5 | Nguyen Thuy Ha | Member 42,600,000
6 | BuiQuang Hung | Member 42,000,000

4. Assessment of related transactions _ :

In 2024, transactions between the Corporation and its subsidiaries and related
companies were conducted transparently, in compliance with the Charter of
_orga11izétion and operation of the Corporation as well as all legal regulations.

S. Results of supervising the management and administration of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management

| - Through monitoring the management and administration activities of the BOD
and the Board of Management of the Corporation in 2024, the Board of Supervisors
notes that members of the BOD and Board of Management have properly performed
their functions and duties as stipulated in the Enterprise Law and the Corporation's
Charter in directing and implementing Resolution No. 59/NQ-GTTN dated April 19,
2024, of the General Meeting of Sharcholders of the Corporation in 2024.

- In 2024, the BOD issued 39 Resolutions and 10 Decisions, all of which were
issued appropriately based on the minutes of BODD meetings, written opinion forms
from BOD members, and in accordance with the authority Stipuiated in the
Corporation's Charter.

- The Board of Directors has supervised the activities of the Board of
‘Management, units, and departments of the Corporation to ensure strict
implementation of the Corporation's regulations and compliance with laws.
‘Additionally, to issue Resolutions and Decisions directing business production, the
BOD regularly sought opinions from BOD members in the form of written opinions

" or emails. The Resolutions and Decisions were issued following proper procedures,
in accordance with the Corporation's Charter and the Enterprise Law, to direct
business production according to the objectives of the General Meeting of
‘Shareholders Resolution in 2024.
~ The Board of Management of the Corporation has followed the Resolutions and
Decisions of the Board of Directors and implemented them decisively with multiple
solutions to help the Corporation maintain stable business production operations
under difficult market conditions.



6. Coordination between the Board of Supervisors and the Board of
Directors, Board of Management, and other managers

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors coordinated closely with the Board of
Directors, General Director, and other managers based on the principle of working
for the interests of the Corporation and its shareholders in accordance with legal
regulations and the Corporation's Charter.

The Board of Directors, General Director, and other managers provided
information and documents about the management, administration, and operations of
the Corporation as per regulations, creating favorable conditions for the supervisory
work. Members of the Board of Supervisors were invited to participate fully in
meetings of the Board of Directors.

In 2024, no shareholders raised concerns about the governance of the Board of
Directors or the management of the Board of Management. Most of the content in the
General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution 2024 has been implemented. The Board
of Supervisors agrees with the Board of Directors' assessment of the implementation
of the General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution 2024.

1. OPERATIONAL PLAN FOR 2025

The Board of Supervisors will perform its functions and duties as stipulated in
the Enterprise Law, the Charter of organization and operation of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, and the operational program it has issued for
2025, specifically:

1. Audit the Financial Statements 2024, the management and administration report
for 2024 of the Corporation. Prepare a report on the activities of the Board of
Supervisors to submit to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025.

2. Propose the selection of an independent auditing company to audit the
Financial Statements 2025 of the Corporation.

3. Conduct supervision and inspection of the reasonableness, legality, and level of
prudence in management and administration of business activities of the Corporation in
fulfilling its responsibilities in 2025.

4. Conduct supervision of financial management according to State regulations,
regulations, and provisions of the Corporation, such as:

- The implementation of leasing, purchasing various materials, raw materials,
tools, equipment, and services for production and repairs.

- The implementation of consumption norms for raw materials, firel, and
materials in production, price targets, and administrative costs of the Corporation.



5. Coordinate with the Corporate Secretary, K& Associates Law Company to
provide regular legal advice to the Corporation; supervise the implementation of
capital representation and shareholder rights proteciion functions through the
Corporation's representatives at subsidiaries and affiliates.

6. Coordinate with the Party Committee's Inspection Committee and relevant
'professional departments of the Corporation to conduct supervision of some units
according to the coordination plan.

7. Conduct unscheduled inspections and monitoring by topic when requested by
the Board of Directors, by shareholders, or by groups of shareholders as per Clause 2,
Article 115 of the Enterprise Law 2020.

IIL. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024

AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited has conducted the audit of the Financial
Statements 2024 of the Corporation. After reviewing the Separate Financial Statements
and Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Supervisors reports the results as
follows: '

The Separate Financial -Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements for 2024
have fairly and reasonably reflected the financial position of the Corporation as of
December 31, 2024, including the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement,
and Notes to the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending on the same date, in
accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards and current enterprise accounting
regulations, except for the impacts of the issues mentioned in the "Basis for qualified audit
opinion" section.

The Board of Supervisors agrees with the figures in the reports that have been audited
by AASC Auditing Company Limited along with the auditor's opinions on the Financial
Statements 2024 of the Corporation. 7 |

1. Key activities during the year affecting the Financial Statéments

- In 2024, the Corporation implemented multiple measures to overcome difficulties,
stabilize production, minimize costs, apply flexible pricing policies to support sales... This
led to significant growth in the Corporation's revenue and gross profit in 2024 compared to
the previous year. ' |

- n 2024, the Corporation reversed into other income the overpaid mineral extraction
rights for North Lang Cam coal mine, South Lang Cam coal mine, and the Canh Chim
underground mining projec‘t - Phan Me coal mine, with a total value of 51.04 billion VND.
The Corporation also sold a large volume of slow-cooling slag at the Iron Smelting Plant
with a value of 20.43 billion VND. These are the main factors leading to a significant

increase in the Corporation's accounting profit before tax in 2024 compared to the previous
year. '



6

2. Basic financial indicators (calculated based om the Consolidated Financial
Statements) '

As of As of
No. Indicator Unit | December | December
31,2023 31,2024

1 | Asset structure

- Non-current assets/Total assets %, 78 74

- Current assets/Total assets % 22 26
2 | Capital structure

- Liabilities/Total capital % 83 . 85

- Owner's equity/Total capital % 17 15

- Liabilities/Owner's equity A 500 558
3 | Liquidity ratios

- Quick ratio Times 0.13 0.15

- Current ratio Times 0.37 0.44

4 | Profitability ratios

- Return on Assets (ROA) %o =1.72 -0.08
- Return on Net Revenue % -1.85 -0.08
- Return on Equity (ROE) % -10.34 -0.53

From the above data, it can be seen that:

The profitability ratios ROA, Return on Net Revenue, and ROE have improved
compared to 2023, but liabilities are still 5.58 times higher than Owner's equity,
indicating very high financial risks; the liquidity ratios are all at low levels, showing
that the Corporation's financial situation and ability to pay its debts are very difficult.

IV. RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the supervision and inspection in 2024, the Board of Supervisors makes the
following recommendations:
Regarding financial balance:

+ Current liabilities in Separate Financial : 6,353.53 billion VND
Statements (December 31, 2024)

+ Current assets : 3,272.81 billion VND
+ Imbalance : 3,080.72 billion VND

As of December 31, 2024, the Corporation is experiencing a capital imbalance of
3,080.72 billion VND, mainly due to the use of short-term capital to pay principal and




interest for Phase II project, which has caused the Corporation's financial indicators to
deteriorate, and commercial banks assess the Corporation's financial capacity as very
low, making it difficult to access loans. Therefore, the Corporation needs to continue to
closely monitor and work with banks on credit limits and interest rates to ensure capital
for business production. Continue to review bad debts, work with competent authorities
to request some organizations and individuals to fulfill their obligations for capital
recovery.

The Corporation needs to be more proactive in accelerating inventory turnover
through accurate forecasting of inventory and necessary raw materials to reduce storage
costs, improve cash flow, and increase responsiveness to market changes.

We urgently recommend that major shareholders provide financial support to the
company to have sufficient capital for business production and implementation of
renovation investment projects.

The above constitutes the Report on the results of inspection and supervision
for 2024, the operational plan for 2025, and the Audit Report on the Corporation's
2024 Financial Statements. This report has been unanimously approved by all
members of the Board of Supervisors. Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting
of Shareholders./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF
- Shareholders of the Corporation;
- Members of the BOD; THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

- General Director; Deputy General Directors of the

Corporation; HEA . BOARD
- Members of the Board of Supervisors; //2,3, "
- Units, departments of the Corporation; ,f;;” -
- Filed: VT, Board of Supervisors. ;{ 01 _ﬂ(/‘ o
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL "
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION 7 Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 54 /TTriGT’f% Thai Nguyen, Aprfl 252025

PROPOSAL :
Regarding the Dismissal of Members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisor
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation — Term 2024-2029

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the 14th National Assembly
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on April 15, 2021;

Pursuant to the “Regulation on the Operation of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation” issued together with Decision No. 08/QD-GTTN dated April 19,
2022, of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation;

Pursuant to the letter of resignation from the position of Member of the Board of Directors
submitted by M. Tran Quang Tien, Mr. Le Minh Tu, Mr. Le Hong Khue and Mrs. Nguyen Thuy
Ha; .

Pursuant to Decision No. 67/QD-VNS dated April 21, 2025 and Decision No. 78/0D-VNS
dated April 25, 2025 of the Board of Directors of Vietnam Steel Corporation — JSC regarding the
dismissal of the capital representative of Vietnam Steel Corporation — JSC at Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation,

Pursuant to Decision No. 07/QD-HDQT dated April 23, 2025, of the Board of Directors of
Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company regarding the termination of the authorization fo
represent its contributed capital at Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation;

Pursuant to Point b, Clause 2, Article 33 of the Charter on Organization and Operation of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval:
1. The dismissal of the following members of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term: '
1.1. Mr. Tran Quang Tien, born on April 7, 1972
1.2. Mr. Le Minh Tu, born on October 16, 1980
1.3. Mr. Le Hong Khue, born on April 26, 1967
2. The dismissal of a member of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term: Mrs. Nguyen Thuy Ha, bom on June 10, 1978
Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As above; IRECTORS
- Members of the BOD, BOS; . 7 m,

* Shareholders; Y \‘“ X
- General Director of the Coporatiorn; /f "/ CONG TY-

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn; :r ‘; pé PHAN
- Departments and units of the Company; - \m\N(J THE

- Filed at:: VT, TK (T.200 copies
\3; . &
—
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL : ;
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: §5 /TIr-GITH, Thai Nguyen, April2§ 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Approval of the '""Regulation on the Election and Replacement of
Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders' of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the 14th National l
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel

Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on April 15,
2021; '

Pursuant fo the “Regulation on the Operation of the Board of Directors of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation” issued together with Decision No. 08/0OD-

GTTN dated April 19, 2022, of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation;

~ Pursuant to Proposal NRWTr GTIN dated April 25, 2025, of the Board of Directors
of the Company regarding the dismissal of members of the Board of Directors and the

Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024—
2029 term;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the "Regulation on the Election and Replacement of Members of
the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024—
2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation” (attached) as the basis for electing the members of the Board
of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term
at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

Recipients: 2 -
- As above: TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
- Members of the BOD, BOS; TICH
- Shareholders; '
- General Director of the Coporatiorn;

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn;
- Departments and units of the Company;;
- Filed at:: VT (T.200 copies).

/CONGTY \;
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPURBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAINGUYEN JRON AND STEEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION p Pp

REGULATION
On the Supplementary Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisor of the Company for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders

(Issued together with Proposal No g&/TTr-GTTN dated / April 25025 of the Board of
Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation)

Article 1. The number of members to be elected and replaced for the Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029
term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation.

1. The number of members to be elected to the Board of Directors is 03.

2. The number of members to be elected to the Board of Supervisor is 01.

Article 2. The standards and conditions for candidates and nominees for election and
replacement to the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharehoiders
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation:

1. The criteria and conditions for candidates or nominees to be elected as additional or
replacement members of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 term, in accordance with the provisions of the Law on
Enterprises and the Charter on Organization and Operations of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation, are as follows:

1.1. Possess full legal capacity and not fall under the categories of individuals prohibited
from managing a business as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 17 of the L.aw on Enterprises;

1.2. Possess professional qualifications and experience in business management of the
Conmpany;

1.3. A member of the Board of Directors of the Company may also serve as a member of
the Board of Directors of other companies, but no more than 05 other companies.

1.4, For subsidiaries in which the State holds more than 50% of the charter capital, a
member of the Board of Directors must not be the spouse, biological parents, adoptive parents,
father-in-law, mother-in-law, father of the wife, mother of the wife, biological children, adopted
children, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister, younger sibling, brother-in-law, sister-in-
taw, brother of the wife, brother of the husband, sister of the wife, sister of the husband,
younger sibling of the wife, or younger sibling of the husband of the General Director or other
managers of the Company. Additionally, they must not be related to the manager or the person
with the authority to appoint managers of the parent company.

1.5. A member of the Board of Directors may not necessarily be a shareholder of the
Company.

2. The criteria and conditions for candidates or nominees to be elected as additional or
replacement members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, in accordance with the provisions of the



Law on Enterprises and the Charter on Organization and Operations of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation, are as follows:

2.1. Possess full legal capacity and not fall under the categories of individuals prohibited
from managing a business as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Law on Enterprises.

2.2, Have received education in one of the following fields: economics, finance,
accounting, auditing, law, business administration, or a field that is relevant to the Company’s
business operations.

2.3. Must not be a family member of any member of the Board of Directors, the CEQ, or
any other executive of the Company. 7

2.4, Must not be a manager of the Company; being a shareholder or an employee of the
Company is not a requirement.

2.5. Must meet any other qualifications and conditions as prescribed by applicable laws
and the Company’s Charter.

Article 3. The right to nominate and elect candidates for election and replacement as
members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 20242029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation:

1. The right to nominate and elect candidates for election and replacement as members of
the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-
2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation:

1.1. Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning 10% or more of the total common
shares have the right to nominate candidates for the Board of Directors.

The nomination and candidacy process shall be carried out as follows

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 10% to Iess than 20% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to one (01) candidate;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 20% to less than 30% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to two (02) candidates;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 30% to less than 40% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to three (03) candidates;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 40% to less than 50% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to four (04) candidates;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 50% to less than 60% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to five (05) candidates;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 60% to less than 70% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to six (06) candidates;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 70% to less than 80% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to seven (07) candidates;

- Shareholders or a group of shareholders owning from 80% to less than 90% of the total
voting shares have the right to nominate up to eight (08) candidates;

1.2. In the event that the number of candidates for the Board of Directors through
nomination and election is still insufficient, the current Board of Directors may propose
additional candidates or organize nominations according to the mechanism stipulated in the
Company’s internal governance regulations. The procedure for introducing candidates for the
Board of Directors by the current Board of Directors must be clearly announced before the




General Shareholders' Meeting votes to elect members of the Board of Directors in accordance
with the law.

2. The right to nominate and elect candidates for election and replacement as members of
the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024—
2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Stee!
Joint Stock Corporation:

a) Shareholders holding voting shares have the right to combine their voting rights to
nominate candidates for the Board of Supervisors in the same way as for members of the Board
of Directors. The nomination and proposal of Supervisory Board members shall be conducted in
accordance with the provisions of Clause 1 and Clause 2, Article 32 of the Company’s Charter.

b) In the event that the number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors through
nomination and election is insufficient, the current Board of Supervisors may propose
additional candidates or organize nominations according to the mechanism stipulated in the
Company’s Charter and internal governance regulations. The procedure for the current Board of
Supervisors to introduce additional candidates must be clearly announced before the General

Shareholders' Meeting votes to elect members of the Board of Supervisors in accordance with
the law.

Article 4. Application dossier for candidacy or nomination of candidates for election and
replacement to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation:

1. Application for candidacy or nomination for election and replacement to the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation
for the 2024-2029 term (form attached);

2. Curriculum vitae (CV) self-declared by the candidate in case of self-nomination, or
candidate information in case of nomination (form attached);

3. Notarized copy of the candidate’s valid identity card, citizen identification card, or
passport (if available);

4, Notarized copies of degrees, certificates, and documents certifying the candidate’s
educational and professional qualifications (if available);

5. The application dossier for candidacy or nomination of candidates for election and
replacement to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen fron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 20242029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be submitted to the Meeting Organizing Committee in accordance with the
regulations.

Article 5. Principles for the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of
Directors and Members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation:

1. Principles for the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of Directors of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation:

1.1. The election of members of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel

Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term shall be conducted by cumulative voting
through secret ballot at the General Meeting,



Cumulative voting method: Each shareholder shall have a total number of voting rights
equal to the number of shares they own or represent by proxy multiplied by the number of
Board of Directors members to be elected (03 individuals). The shareholder may accumulate
all or part of their votes for one or more candidates;

1.2. Shareholders voting for a candidate shall write the number of votes cast for that
candidate in the “NUMBER OF VOTES” column;

1.3. If a shareholder does not vote for a candidate, they shall leave the “NUMBER OF
VOTES” column blank or cross it out; such a ballot shall be considered a blank ballot.;

1.4. The total number of votes cast by a sharcholder for candidates must not exceed the
total number of votes that the shareholder is entitled to;

1.5. The ballot paper shall bear the overlapping seal of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation in the upper left corner.

The supplementary ballot for the election and replacement of members of the Board of
Directors shall have pre-printed information, including: the number of shares owned or
represented by proxy by the shareholder; the number of votes the shareholder is entitled to
(calculated by multiplying the number of shares by the number of members to be elected, which
is 03); and the names of the candidates.

1.6. The elected members of the Board of Directors are determined based on the number
of votes, ranked from the highest to the lowest, starting with the candidate who receives the
highest number of votes, until the required number of members, which is 03. In the event that
two or more candidates receive the same number of votes for the final position, a re-election
will be conducted among the candidates with equal votes.

2. Principles for the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of Supervisor of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation:

2.1 The election of members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term shall be conducted by cumulative voting
through secret ballot at the General Meeting.

Cumulative voting method: Each shareholder shall have a total number of voting rights
equal to the number of shares they own or represent by proxy multiplied by the number of
Board of Directors members to be elected (01 individuals). The shareholder may accumulate
all or part of their votes for one or more candidates.

2.2. Shareholders voting for a candidate shall write the number of votes cast for that
candidate in the “NUMBER OF VOTES” column;

2.3. If a shareholder does not vote for a candidate, they shall leave the “NUMBER OF
VOTES?” column blank or cross it out; such a ballot shall be considered a blank ballot.;

2.4. The total number of votes cast by a shareholder for candidates must not exceed the
total number of votes that the shareholder is entitled to;

2.5. The ballot paper shall bear the overlapping seal of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation in the upper left corner.

The ballot for electing members of the Board of Supervisor shall have pre-printed
information, including: the number of shares owned or represented by proxy by the shareholder;
the number of votes the shareholder is entitled to (calculated by multiplying the number of
shares by the number of members to be elected, which is 01); and the names of the candidates.




2.6. The elected members of the Board of Directors are determined based on the number.
of votes, ranked from the highest to the lowest. In the event that two or more candidates receive
the same number of votes for the final position, a re-election will be conducted among the
candidates with equal votes.

Article 6. The following ballots for the election and replacement of members of the Board
of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation shall be considered invalid:

1. Ballots that are not issued by the Election Committee;

2. Ballots that do not bear the seal of “Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation” in the upper left corner of the ballot paper;

3. A ballot on which the total number of votes cast by a shareholder for the candidates -
exceeds the number of votes allowed for that shareholder (calculated as the number of shares
multiplied by the number of members to be elected: 03 for the Board of Directors; 01 for the
Board of Supervisor);

4. Ballots that include names of individuals not on the list of nominees or candidates;

5. Ballots with unclear handwriting or numbers, making them unreadable.

Article 7. Announcement of the Results of the Election and Replacement of Members of
the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock -Co1poration for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation:

1. Based on the vote counting minutes, the results of the election and replacement of
members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen
Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term shall be announced by the Vote
Counting Committee immediately at the General Meeting;

2. The results will be recorded in the resolution of the General Meeting.

Article 8. Effectiveness.

This regulation shall take effect from the date of signing/approval and shall only apply to
the election and replacement of members of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stoclk Corpolanon/ %/

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

'r: (,UNGrI"* 'J_



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
Regarding the Nomination of Candidates for the Board of Directors of That Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

At ... o'clock on ... day ... month ... year 2025, at ............ , we, the group of
shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, hold a total of .........
shares (in WOrds ........vevviiviviiiiiiirannens ), representing ..... % of the total voting shares of

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation. Below is the information of each
shareholder in the group:

NUMBER
SHAREHOLDER'S |  [D/BUSINESS OF
No. REGISTRATION | ADDRESS SIGNATURE
NAME NUMBER SHARES
OWNED
Total

We hereby unanimously nominate:
| £ O 1Y £ ) P (if applicable)
ID card/Citizen ID/Passport No.: ................ issued On....ovviiiinnnn, al i
Permanent AddresS: . ot e e
Education level: ... ... MaEJOT: et
Currently owning: ..........ccovvvene. shares (In words: ...oooviiiii )

To be a candidate for the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 term, to elect and replace members of the Board of Directors at

the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation.

2. At the same time, we unanimously appoint:
ID card/Citizen ID/Passport No.: .......c..oevee. issued on...cocooveeeine Al e
Permanent adaress: (oo e

Education level: ... ..o, MaJOr: o

Currently owning: ........ooevvininenn, shares (In Words: .....cooviiiiiiiiii e )

To act as the representative of the group to carry out the nomination procedures in
accordance with the regulations on nominating and candidacy for the Board of Directors of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 20242029 term, for the election and
replacement of members of the Board of Directors at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

........... , April ... 2025

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE SHAREHOLDER GROUP
(Signature and full name)



SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
Regarding the Nomination of Candidates for the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen
Iren and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

At ... o'clock on ... day ... month ... year 2025, at ............ , we, the group of
shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, hold a total of .........
shares (in Words .......oovviiviiiiinn, ), representing ..... % of the total voting shares of

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation. Below is the information of each
shareholder in the group:

ID/BUSINESS NUMBER
No, | SHARTIIDLDER'S REGISTRATION | ADDRESS SEaREs | SIGNATURE
OWNED
Total
We hereby unanimously nominate:
G (1 6 G (if applicable)
ID card/Citizen ID/Passport No.: .......ooeeenis issued On....coeeevieenins BE vt
J a1 E 0T a T o gt O
Education level: ... ... MaJOr: i e e
Currently owning: .........ooveeenenn, shares (In words: ......ooiiiiiiiin )

To be a candidate for the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 term, to elect and replace members of the Board of Supervisors

at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation.

2. At the same time, we unanimously appoint:

ID card/Citizen ID/Passport No.: ........oeeeens issued On...evrrreerennn, ) AR
i (S s o114 OSSOSO
Education level: ... ...l MaJOT: o

Currently owning: ..........cevenvinins shares (in Words: .....oooiiiiiiiii i )

To act as the representative of the group to carry out the nomination procedures in
accordance with the regulations on nominating and candidacy for the Board of Supervisors of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term, for the election
and replacement of members of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

........... , April .... 2025
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE SHAREHOLDER GROUP
(Signature and full name)




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

APPLICATION FOR CANDIDACY FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL JOINT STOCK CORPORATION FOR THE
2024-2029 TERM
At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation

To: The Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the 14th National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the "Regulation on the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of
Directors, Member of the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation” issued along with Decision No.... /QD-

GTTN dated April...2025 of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation.

IMLY THAITIE 381 1ieitiiiiiteiiieceesee et s e breiv i e s e eas e cab e e e s b s e b e e sae s ssb e b n e ab e e ne e e ranenesre e
1D card/Citizen ID/Passport No.: ........... Issued by: ..ocoveieinnnn. Date of iS5U€: «vvevvieerevernnne,
Date of birth:
Place of birth:

Permanent address:

...........................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................

Phone: ..., Fax: o Emaill i
Education level: ..ccccovveeneennn. Professional and technical qualifications: ......cc.cccveinnnenne,

The number of shares owned in Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation as of
the present time 1S: v shares.

I request the Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation to acknowledge my registration for
candidacy for the position of a member of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term to be elected as a supplementary or replacement
member at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of That Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation (with the attached curriculum vitae, notarized photocopy of ID card,
and copies of academic and professional qualifications).

If entrusted by the shareholders to be elected as a member of the Board of Directors, 1

commit to dedicating my full capabilities and efforts to contribute to the development of Thai
Nguyen [ron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

Thank you sincerely!

........... , April .... 2025
CANDIDATE



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

NOMINATION LETTER FOR A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL JOINT STOCK CORPORATION TERM 2024 - 2029
At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel

Joint Stock Corporation

To: The Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the 14th National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the "Regulation on the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of
Directors, Member of the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation” issued along with Decision No.... /QD-
GTTN dated April...2025 of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation.

Name of Individual/Organization: ...

ID card/Citizen ID/Passport /Business Registration No.: ........ issued on ........ 21 RO
A LSS ettt ettt e e e
Phone: ....coooovviiiiiiiinn, Fax

........................................................

Number of shares owned in Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation as of
NOW. cvreveenieenenenns shares.

We respectfully request the Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation to record
our nominated candidate(s) as follows:

[NV e 4\ E - LT OO

ID Card/Passport No.: ...oeeenn, Issued by: oo Date of issue: ...
DATE OF DITTRL Lottt ettt s a e sa e e en e e e e b e b e s as
PLACE OF DIITHL 1vvviiiviiie s vre st e et ce st e raree e ras s s teeeee s e e e e eraes rae e e seeaerseerteasnnearsasssaeeneennteesareeten
Permanent AAAIESS: civveirrieiieee s esireereese e e st da et re s e et s st r e nre e be e s r s rsns s era e
Phone: coveveveeciiviieennns Fax: oo Emaili oo,
Education level: ....occcoveen. Professional and technical qualifications: ......cccevvvivvvriveciininn,

The number of shares owned in Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation as
Of IOW 1S v shares, corresponding to a total par value of

To elect supplementary and replacement members to the Board of Directors of Thai

Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2025.

Thank you sincerely!

........... , April .... 2025
NOMINATOR



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

APPLICATION FOR CANDIDACY FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL JOINT STOCK CORPORATION FOR THE
2024-2029 TERM
At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation

To: The Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Cofporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the 14th National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the "Regulation on the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of
Directors, Member of the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation" issued along with Decision No.... /Qb-

GTTN dated April...2025 of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation.

MY TIBITIE 181 1evtiueiuesseerneeseetereesesiensssesasin st ab s eb s a e b e b ea s s b e e e e a e s n 2 SA A b o b e b e b ek a bbbt
ID card/Citizen ID/Passport No.: ........... Issued by: .o Date of issue: .ooovvviiviinreninnn
DALE OF DI coovveiviiie et eeee e er e eervereetese et ebe e s e b b et abe e erer e et e s en s e b bRt
PLACE OF DIITR: criitiiiiiii ettt b et se st e s n e e et e e s e et s be s shd e bbb bs bbb a s
Permanent AdarESS: v eiee sttt e e e b e
Phone: .o Fax: e, Email: oo
Education level: ... Professionat and technical qualifications: ........ccccvvniinine

The number of shares owned in Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation as of
the present time 1S ..o, shares.

I request the Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation to acknowledge my registration for
candidacy for the position of a member of the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term to be elected as a supplementary or
replacement member at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation (with the attached curriculum vitae, notarized photocopy of
ID card, and copies of academic and professional qualifications).

If entrusted by the shareholders to be elected as a member of the Board of Supervisors, 1
commit to dedicating my full capabilities and efforts to contribute to the development of That
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

Thank you sincerely!

........... , April .... 2025
CANDIDATE

1



SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

NOMINATION LETTER FOR A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL JOINT STOCK CORPORATION TERM 2024 - 2029

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation

To: The Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the 14th National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the "Regulation on the Election and Replacement of Members of the Board of
Directors, Member of the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation" issued along with Decision No.... /QD-
GTTN dated April...2025 of the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation.

Name of Individual/Orgamization: ........covuviiirii i

ID card/Citizen ID/Passport /Business Registration No.: ........ issued on ........ al e
FN 14§ = S P
Phone: ........oooiviiiiiii i, Fax

........................................................

Number of shares owned in Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation as of
LOW: weveereireinennns shares.

We respectfully request the Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation to record
our nominated candidate(s) as follows:

VLI IVITS T oiteitereecttree ettt st a0 sm ke s e e e m e A s e e e e s d e g e s a L e e e e e n et n e e
ID Card/Passport No.: oo, Issued by: covneiee, Date of issue: ....ccoevviniinne,
Date OF DIFTRL 1ot e e e e ere s aren e
P1ace OF DIFLRI oottt e et
Permanent BAAIESS! coiiioiiiriie sttt re e e e e e nree e e s b e baereee e
Phone: .o, Fax: e Emaill oo
Education level: ......cococeenn Professional and technical qualifications: ........cccovveiceirnirecinnn,

The number of shares owned in Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation as
Of NOW IS e shares, corresponding to a total par value of

---------------------------

To elect supplementary and replacement members to the Board of Supervisors of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders 2025.

Thank you sincerely!

........... , April ... 2025
NOMINATOR
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Independence - Freedom - Happiness

by the background

CURRICULUM VITAE

( For candidates nominated or self-nominated for election fo the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation for the 2024-2029 term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders )

I

1.
2.
3.
4

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10

11

. PERSONAL INFORMATION:

Full birth name:

Commonly used name:

Alias:

1D card/Citizen ID/Passport No:
Place of issue:

Gender: [[1Male [ Female
Date of birth:

Place of birth:
Original nationality:

Current nationality:
. Ethnicity:

. Native place:

12. Permanent address as per household registration:

13.

Permanent address as per 1D card:

14. Current permanent address:

15.

Date of entry into state agency (if applicable):

16. Date of joining the Communist Party (if applicable):

17. Date of joining mass organizations:

18. Field(s) of expertise:

19. Name of representative organization (if any):

20. Address of the authorized representative organization:
21.

Number of shares personally owned at TISCO:

22. Number of shares authorized to represent at TISCO:

23.

Educational qualification:

24. Professional qualification (specify course details):

25.

Foreign language proficiency:

Date of issue:

Religion:

. Work history (briefly state the workplace, position, and profession since the age of 18):

........................................................................................................................................................

.......................................................................................................................................................



27 REWAIAS: oot riiiiriret e ectee st ettt e ree s s aaer et e st v e s bt e e e st e e s aa e e e e bt e s e sh R e s AR s ea b e e s e e e e s an e
28. DisCIPHNATY BCHOMST totirieieririiierieectrenismer e e b b aea e e sas b s e b s s be et s s ranab b
29, CUITENE POSIHION. 1.iioteirieieetiteireetie ettt e ee e s bt e s eab s e st eas s sb e emer b e e et b e e e n e
30. Legal violations (I 80y ) .t s srsb e r b e s enre )

. FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS (Father, mother, spouse, siblings, children)

Relationship Full Name Age Workplace Position

ITIL LEGAL COMMITMENT:

I hereby declare that I am not in violation of any current laws and take full legal
responsibility for the accuracy and truthfulness of the information provided in this declaration.

Certification* April ... ... 2025.
Declarant
(Signature and full name)

Note:

1 Confirmation from the head of the organization if the individual is currently employed by a legal
entity, or from the People’s Committee of the commune/ward where the individual is registered for
permanent residence (if the individual is not employed by a legal entity).

A



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCYALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION 4 pp

No. 56 /FIrGTIN : Thai Nguyen, April 252025 .

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Approval of the List of Nominees and Candidates for the Additional
and Replacement Election of Members of the Board of Directors for the 2024-2029
Term

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the [4th
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders on April 15, 2021;

Pursuant to the “"Regulation on the Operation of the Board of Directors of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation” issued together with
Decision No. 08/QD-GTIN dated April 19, 2022, of the Board of Directors of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation;

Pursuant to the "Regulation on the Election and Replacement of Members of
the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for
the 2024-2029 Term at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation™;

Pursuant to the nomination by Vietnam Steel Corporation — JSC (currently
holding 119,600,000 shares, equivalent to 65% of the charter capital of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation) for the election of Mr. Thieu Dinh
Tinh, Mr. Tran Thai Dung, as members of the Board of Directors of the Company
Jor the 2024-2029 term;

Pursuant to the nomination by Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company
(currently holding 36,800,000 shares, equivalent to 20% of the charter capital of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation) for the election of Mps.
Nguyen Thi Nguyet as a members of the Board of Directors of the Company for the
2024-2029 term and the election of Mr. Do Quang Kien as a members of the
Board of Supervisor of the Company for the 2024-2029 term

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Sharecholders for approval:

1. The list of nominated and elected candidates for election as members of the

Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the
2024-2029 term, including;

1.1. Mr. Thieu Dinh Tinh Born on: May 15, 1979
Professional qualification: Bachelor of Economics

I



Current position: Deputy Head of Investment and Technical Department —
Vietnam Steel Corporation —JSC

The number of shares authorized by Vietnam Steel Corporation - JSC to
represent is- 21,528,000 shares of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation. (4 curriculum vitae is attached).

1.2. Mr. Tran Thai Dung Born on: August 6, 1970 ’

Professional qualification: Electrical Engineer

Current position: Head of Design and Equipment Management Department —
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Company

The number of shares authorized by Vietnam Steel Corporation - JSC to
represent is 21,528,000 shares of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock:
Corporation. (4 curriculum vitae is attached).

1.3. Mrs. Nguyen Thi Nguyet Born on: November 28, 1975

Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

Current position: Head of Business Department — Thai Hung Trading Joint
Stock Company |

The number of shares authorized by Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company
to represent is 22,596,900 shares of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation. (4 curriculum vitae is attached).

2. The list of nominated and elected candidates for election as members of the
Board of Supervisor of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for the
2024-2029 term, including:

2.1. Mr. Do Quang Kien Born on: September 9, 1984

Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

Current position: General Director of Cao Bac Trading Joint Stock Company

and concurrently Deputy Head of Legal Affairs of Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock
Company

Respectfully submitted for the General Meéting_’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF

- As above; DIREC S

- Members of the BOD, BOS; e €\ HIQI‘I\(’}EN

- Shareholders; /J"";gj‘,‘ 00755 % s e
- General Director of the Coporatiorn; Vo \; S o /

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn; fl=/ CONGT o

=/ -~ ,_\ b
- Departments and units of the Company; x| QP HA'\'

2
- Filed at:: VT, TK (T.200 copies). % H“r{g”; :
: ﬁf/ \1 THAINGUYEN &
N )

s it o AR R



CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Pée lap - Ty do - Hanh phiec

\ . SO YEULY LICH

EO G TY(D cho cde thank vidn dupe dé cir, g otk dé biu vdo HEi dong quan trf

g 73 thép Thdi Nguyén nhiém kp 2024-2029 tai Pai Fgi dong 0 dong thiedng nién 2 0-25)

)

. Hova tén khm sinh: THIEU PINH TINH

. Ho va tén thidmg ding: THIEU DINH TINH

. Bidanh: Khéng cd

. CMND/CCCD/ Hb chibu s6: 038079000090  Chp ngay: 09/04/2021
tai: Cuc Carnth sat quan Iy hanh chinh.v& trit tr x4 hoi

Giti tinh: v Nam - [

Ngay thang nim sinh: 15/05/1979

Noi sinh: Thanh Hod

Québc tich gbc: Vidt Nam

e BN e e

2 g e

. Qubc tich hign nay; Viét Nam

10. Dén tdc: Kinh Ton gido: Khong

11. Nguyén quan: Hofing Théng, Hofng Ho4, Thanh Ho4

12. Dia chi thudng trd theo ho khéu: My Dinh I, Nam Tir Liém, Ha Noi

13. Pia chi thudng tri theo CMND: M Pinh I, Nam Tl Liém, Ha Noi

14. Dia chi thudng tri hién nay: My Dinh I, Nam Tir Ligém, Ha N&i

15. Ngay vao co quan Nha nude (néu cb):

16. Ngay vio Dang (néu 14 dang vidn): 26/6/2018

17. Ngéy tham gia cdc dodn thé:

18. S& trudmg cdng téc: Quan Iy dAu t

19. Tén ctia ¥ chire dai dién (ndu c6): Téng cong ty Thép Viét Nam - CTCP

20. Pia chi ciia td chirc uy quyén dai dién: 91 Lang Ha, Pdng Da, Ha Néi

21. S6 ¢ phén c4 nhén dang s& hitu tai TISCO: Khéng ¢6

22. 86 cb phén duge uy quyén dai dién tai TISCO: 21.528.000 cp

23. Trinh d8 hoc vAn: Pai hoc

24. Trinh @) chuyén mon (ghi r6 khoa hoc): Ci nhan kinh té

25. Trinh @8 ngoai ngtt: Tiéng Anh

26. Qud trinh cdng tdc (nfu tom tht noi cong téc, chire vi, nghe nghiép tir nm 18 tudi):
Tir théng, nim

Lo . Chitc danh, chite vy, don vi cdng tac (dang, chinh quyén, doan thé) !
dén thang, ndm

T ném 2003 -
2006

Nhén vién thi trudmg Cong ty Goldsun




Tirndm 2012 -
2014

Céan bg Phong K& hoach - K3 thuat, Cong ty Handico 52

Tir thang
01/2016 dén
31/12/2020

Chuyén vién Ban Quén Iy Diu tu, Téng cong ty Thép Viét Nam - CTCP

Tir 01/01/2021
dén 01/04/2021

Phé Truéng Ban Qudn |y Diu tu, Tong cong ty Thép Viét Nam - CTCP

Tir 02/04/2021
dhusiay Phé Trudng Ban K thuit Dau tw, Tng cong ty Thép Viét Nam - CTCP
e
Tir 07/05/2021 i
: dén 3 Phé Bi thu Chi b Ky thuit Dau tw Tong cong ty Thép Viét Nam - CTCP
enna .

27. Khen thudmg: Khong
28. Ky luét: Khéng

29. Chite vy céng tdc hién nay: Phé Trudng Ban K§ thut Py tu

30. Hanh vi vi pham phép luat (néu cé): Khong

1. MOI QUAN HE GIA PINH (B(f, me, vo' (chc?ng), anh chi em rugt, con)

Niam

Ho va tén )
: sinh

Moi quan hé

Qué quén, ngh:’:L nghiép, chitc danh, chirc vy,
don vi cOng tdc, hoc t@p, noi & (trong, ngoai
nude); thanh vién céc té chire chinh tri-xa
hdi..

Thidu Dinh Cée 1949

o

B

- Qué quén: x3 Hoing Thing, huyén Hoang
Héa, tinh Thanh Ho6a

- Tri quén: x& Hoang Théng, huyén Hodng
163, titth Thanh Héa,

- Nghé nghiép: Gigo vién vé huu

Me Nguyén Thj Thi 1952

- Qué quan: x& Hodng Minh, huyén Hoing
Héa, tinh Thanh Héa

- Trii quén: xi Hoing Thing, huyén Hofing_
Hoa, tinh Thanh Hoa

- Nghé nghiép: Gido vién v& huu.,

Vo Lé Thi V&n Thanh 1984

- Qué quén: Thanh Héa

- Noi &: $6 28, ngd 394/26, TDP 7 Pinh
Thoén. phuong M§ Pinh 1, Nam Tir Liém,
Ha Nbi

- Nghé nghiép: Chuyén vién Phong Diéu
hanh dir 4n 4, Ban 3, Cuc Pudng Bo Viét
Nam

Con Thidu L& Ha Linh 2011

- Hoc sinh 16p 8A3, Truong Trung hoc co s&
My Binh 1, Nam Tir Liém, Ha Néi

- Noi &: S6 28, ngd 394/26, TDP 7 Pinh
Thon. phudong My Dinh 1, Nam Tir Liém,
Ha Noi

Con Thiéu Gia Bao 2014

- Hoc sinh 1ép 5A7, Truomg Tiéu hoe My
Pinh 1, Nam Tix Liém, Ha Noi

- Noi &: 86 28, ngd 394/26, TDP 7 Dinh
Thén. phuémg My DPinh 1, Nam Tir Liém,
Ha Nbi




Con Thidu L& Ha An 2019 | - Hoc sinh trudng Mam non My Binh
- Noi &: §8 28, ngd 394/26, TDP 7 Dinh
Thén. phudng My Dinh I, Nam T Liém,

. Ha N
Anh .| Thiéu Binh Minh 1976 | - Qué quan: Thanh Hoa
- Gidm dbc Cong ty ¢d phén Pau tr Vinsun
tai Thanh Hoa '
Em Thidu Thi Mai Tuyét | 1987 | - Qué quan: Thanh Hoa

- Trudng phong tin dung, Bi thu dodn thanh
nién Ngfn hang Co-~op Bank Ha Noi

L. CAM KET TRUGC PHAP LUAT:
Cam két khdng vi pham cée quy dinh ciia phéap fuat hién hénh va chiu tréch rhim trude phap ludt v
béan khai nay.

Hé N§i, ngay . thitng 4 adm 2025,

/If;?’{ Jﬂ . Nguﬁn Ihai
\* THLP\I

\ i .,:_,;}/ ILIONG GlAM BéiC Thi¢u Binh Tinh
T TRUCNS BANTO Chije ‘JnANQU

c/f }r@we f/w #JJ’E;{J{W?

Ghi Chii:

! Xdc nhén clia thi tredng co quan néu cd nhdn dang lam viée tai phdp nhén hode UBND xd, phidng
noi cd nhan dang ko hd khdu thirong trii (néu cd nhdn khdng 1am viéc tai phdp nhdn).




'CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Boce ldp - Tw do - Hanh phiic

] A s .
}\ - SOYEULY LICH
~df1‘mg cho cdc thanhvién duge dé e, sing cir dé bdu vao Hi dong quan tri

Ccmg n: qu" n Cang thép Thdi Nguyérn nhiém jgh 2024-2029 tgi Dai hgi ddng e déng thusng nidn 2025)

VE BAN "I‘HﬁN:

. Ho va tén khai sinh: Trdn Thai Diing

. Ho va tén thudmg ding: Trin Théi Diing

. Bi danh: Khong

. CMND/CCCD/ Ho chibu sb: 019070000778 Chp ngdy: 13/4/2021
tai: Cuc Canh sdt Quén 1y banh chinh vé trat tw x4 hol

. Gidi tinh: [ |Nam [N

. Ngay thing nim sioh: 06/8/1970

N

7. Noi sinh: Phudmg Huong Son, thanh phd Théi Nguyén, tinh Thai Nguyén

8. Qubc tich gber Vigt Nam

9. Qude tich hién nay: Viét Nam

10. Dén toe: Kinh Tén gido: Khéng
11. Nguyén quén: Huong Long, Hwong Khé, Ha Tinh

12, Dia chi thudng trti theo hd khdu: T6 13, phudng Trung Thanh, TP That Nguyén, tinh Thai

Nguyén
13. Dia chi 'thuimg trd theo CMND: T3 13, phudng Trung Thimh, TP Thai Nguyén, tinh Thai
Nguyén

14, Dia chi thwdmg tri hign nay: T4 13, phudng Trung Thanh, TP Thai Nguy€n, tinh Thai Nguyéa
15. Ngay vio co quan Nha nuée (néu cé,):-'. ............................................ e eataea et reaene e ese e earare
16. Ngéy viio Dang (néu 13 déng vien): 13/3/2001
17. Ngay tham gia cée doan thé: 14/11/1994
18. 8¢ trudmg cong tdc: Quan 1y thidt bi
19. Tén cta tb chite dai dién (néu c6): Téng céng ty Thép Viét Nam - CTCP (VNSteel)
20, Dia chi ctia & chite uy quyén dai dién: 91 Lang Ha, Quan Péng Da, Thanh phd Ha Ngi
21. S6-¢b phin c4 nhén dang s& hitu tai TISCO: 300
22. 88 cb phin duoe uy quyén dai dién tai TISCO: 21.528.000
23. Trlith @6 hoc vAn: Pai hoe
24, Trinh 49 ¢huyén mon (ghi & khod hoe): K§ su Dién khi hod x{ nghiép (1988-1994); Cir nhdn
Quén tri kinh doanh (2006-2009)
25. Triah dd ngoai ngft: Anh A
26. Quit trinh cOng tAe (ndu tom tht noi cdng téc, chitc vy, nghé nphidp tir nim 18 tudi):
- Tir 1988 - 1994: Sinh vién trudng Pai hoc K§ thudt Céng nghiép Thai Nguyén,



- Tix 12/1994 - 6/1998: Céng nhan Phan xuéng Cép dién - Xi nghidp Ning luong, Cong ty Gang

thép Théi Nguyén.
- Tir 6/1998 - 9/2004: Céng nhidn Phin xudng Co dién - Nha may Cén thép Luu X4, Cong ty
Gang thép Théai Nguyén. -

- Tir 9/2004 — 6/2005: K¥ thuét vién Phong K§ thuit Co dién — NM Cén thép Luu X4, Cong ty
Gang thép Thai Nguyén.

- T 6/2005 — 3/2009: Phé phong K§ thuit Co digén — NM Can thép Luu X4, Céng ty Gang thép
Théi Nguyén.

- Tir 4/2009 — 3/2011: Trudng phong K§ thuit Co dién — NM Cén thép Luu X4, Céng ty CP
Gang thép Thai Nguyén.

- Tir 4/2011 — 01/2012: Phé Trudng phong Thiét k& va Quan 1y thiét bi, Cong ty CP Gang thép Thai
Nguyén.

- Tir 01/2012 - nay: Trudmg phong Thiét ké va Quan Iy thiét bi, Céng ty CP Gang thép Théi Nguyén.

27. Khen thuéng: Khong R,
i‘{ 5 \.'\‘: .
28. Ky luét: Khong NN

29, Chite vu cong tac hién nay: Truémg phong Thidt ké va Quan ly thiét bi
30. Hanh vi vi pham phap ludt (néu c6): Khong

II. MOI QUAN HE GIA DINH (Bd, me, vo (chong), anh chi em rudt, con)

M A ) . ¢
- | Ho va tén Tudi Noi cong téc Chire vu

quan hé ;

B6d¢ | Trén Vin Thung Sinh 1938 P4a mit nim 2017

Me d¢ | Hira Thi Hao 82 Phudémg Huong Son, TPTN CN nghi huu

Vo Tran Thi Kim Uyén 51 NM Cén thép Luu X4 Nhén vién

Anh Tran Manh Hing Sinh 1966 D4 mét nam 2015
) Cong ty TNHH chimg khodn

Em Trdn Vin Thén 48 Ngén hang Viét Nam Thinh | Nhén vién
L VIong

Con Tran Thi Thuy Linh 22 Truong DH Phenikaa Sinh vién

Con Tran Thai Duy 16 Trudng PT Viing cao Viét Bac | Hoe sinh

1II. CAM KET TRU'OC PHAP LUAT:
Cam két khéng vi pham cdc quy dinh cia phép luét hién hanh va chiu trach nhiém trude
phép luat v& ban khai nay.

p 3, o8 it a,\}\(ac nhiin Thdai Nguyén, ngay  thdang 4 ndm 2025,
gt . f'_ ;-“ Ngwoi khai
gq ]U i -
-4 \' i r LI A
f[ FHAN f p ( Ky, ghir6 ho tén )
] R
' \G l.l 5 ].;! -m-/[ T .f_/ i rik
AN THANGIYEY S T
RSN SN .,/ f
S P
e T A
T }1‘-_{1 W if “F? JE"E'M‘WE\




CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHTA VIET NAM
Dgc lap - Ty do ~ Hanh phac

SOYEU LY LICH
fio cac thamh vien diege dé o, tng eir d8 baw vao Hpi ding qu{m n;’
5? Gang thép Thdi Nguyén nhifm kp 2024-2029 ti Dyi i c‘fung 6 dong
d thirong nién 2023)

2 Ho va tén thudng ch‘zng Ngoyén Th1 NLuyq:t _ ,
3. BIAANDT ot e e ettt T
4. CMND/CCCD/ Ho chifu sb: 026175004008 Clp ngdy: 12/04/2021
tai: Cuc cénh sat QLHC vé trdt tyr x4 hi
S, Gidi tinh: [ JNam v Nit
6. Npgiy thing niim sinh: 28/11/1975
7. Noi sinh: Hung Yén
8. Qubc tich gbe: Vit Nam
9. Qudc tich hién nay: Viét Nam
14. Dan tée: Kinh Tén gido: Khong
11, Nguyén quan: X8 Vinh Khie, Huyén Vin Giang, Hung Yén
12. Dia chi thudng trG theo hé khdu: T 3, Phubmg Phan Dinh Phing, Thanh phé Thai
Nguyén _
13. Dia chi thudng tri theo CCCD: 16 5, Phudng Phan Pinh Phimg, Thanh phé Théi Nguyén
14. Pia chi thudmg tri Lién nay: T4 5, Phudng Phan Binh Phimg, Thinh phd Thai Nguyén
15, Ngay vA0 ¢or quan Nha DIGC (80 68)7 «evrermmicmseesmresemmssnesssesssmrsssms e csssinsssssessnsssesassenes
16. Ngay vio Dang (néu 13 dang vién): 17/11/2008
17, Ngdy thum gia ¢4C d0An th&: ooervrrecsceeeriesriecesss ettt ssanssressss s msssrsis s ssssrinas
18. Si trudmig cdng tde: K& todn, Kinh doanh
19. Tén ctia t& chic dai dién (uéu e6): Cong ty C6 phin Thuong mai Thai Hung
20. Bia chi ctia 8 chire uy quyén dai dién: T4 8 phudmg Gia Sang, TP Théi Nguyén, tnh Thé
Nuouvén
21.88 co ph?in cd nhin dzmg 1 56 hitu tal TISCO: 0 ¢b phin
22. 88 cé phin 511’{)’(: vy quyen dai dién tai TISCO: 22.596.900 cd phin
23. Trinh 46 hoe van: 12/12 _
24, Trinh d8 chuyén mdn (ghi 1§ khod hoc): Cir nhin K& todn Trudng Dai hoe Kinh t& va
Quén trf kink doanh Théi N guyén
25. Trinh d6 115()'1} ngir: Tiéng Anh
26. Qué trinh cdng tée (ndu tém it noi cbng e, chire v, nghe nghiép tir n¥m 18 wdi):



Thai Hung

STT | Khodng thoi gian Cong ty/T6 chire cbng thc Chire yy pam giir
y ty TNHH K thudt Chié
1 11999 - 2003 Cong ty TNH [:K) thudt Chién Nhan vién
; Théang
[ ‘ = F .
| ! & s I }Mae iy
2 2003 - 2005 Céng ty b phén thuong mai Phé phong Kinh doanh

3 | T1/2005 - T2/2005

Cong ty ¢6 phan thuong mai
Thai Hung

Phé Giam dbe

4 2005 - nay

Cong ty ¢d phin thwong mai
Thai Hung

Trudng phong Kinh Doanh

27. Khen thudmg:

Nim Danh higu dwge khen Chp quyit dinh
Nim 2021 Chién s¥ thi dua co s& Cong ty
Nam 2022 Chién s§ thi dua co 50 Cdng ty
Niam 2023 Lao ddng tién tién Céng ty
Nim 2024 Chién s§ thi dua co 56 Congty
28. Ky luét: Khong

29. Chite vu ¢dng tdc hién nay: Truéng phong kinh doanh — Cong ty C6 phin Thuong mai
Thai Hung

30. Hanh vi vi pham phép ludt (néu ¢6): Khong cd

I1. MO1 QUAN HE GIA PINH (Bd, me, vo (chong), anh chi em rugt, con)

& —=r
MG . Ho va tén Tubi Noi cdng tic Chievy |
guan hé
Bdd& | Npuyén Vin Chung 77 | Trudmg E1171 - BCA Can b (da mit)
M¢dé | Nguyén Thi Sanh 77 | Céng an TPTN Cén b (Inru trf)
Chdng Nguyén Céng Tréng 56 S;: 6;‘;{2};!;;3;691 bién Cén bd (huu trf)
Phong An ninh chinh trj néi
Anh trai | Nguyén Thanh Nguyén | 52 | bd - Cong an tinh Thai Trudmg phong
Nguyén ;
Emgdi | Nguyén Thi Bich Ngoe | 42 | Cdng an tinh Thdi Npuyén | Cén bd
Contrai | Nguyén Nam Khanh 18 | Trudémg THPT Chuyén TN Toan 12
Con gdi | Nguyén Khanh Chi 16 | Trwdmg THPT Chuyén TN Trung 10

11, CAM KET TRUOC PHAP LUAT:
Cam két khong vi pham cie quy dinh cta phip Iudt hién hanh va chiu trach nhiém
trude phdp ludt vé ban khai nay,

e Xde nhin!
_Vf.:;"f'::’:“* :

i
ﬂmf\[jﬁueﬂ, ngay 23 thdang 4. néim 2025,
& Ngudi khai
( Ky, ghi td ho tén)

//LW”// oy
Nauyine Fhe Ny ;

S/ CORGTY \-\ e e

a:{ L0 PHAN A
\15‘ ;J/‘w,ﬂ';

|\.-~ .
" j] Ll ‘ \{'/

l,; pp it R

f_um t’rm Hice



CONG HOA XA HOT CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
Pie lip - Ty do - Hanh phiic

SO YEU LY LICH

( Dwzg cho cdc thanh vien dwge 42 o, seng cie dé bdu vao Ban Kiém sodt

"5 j)ghﬂ{i' Oan,g thip Thei Nguvén phigm kp 2024-2029 tgi Dai hii dong ¢é déng thiedng nidn 2025)

L VE BAN '[HA
1. Hova ‘e hatsinh: B Quang Kién

2. Ho va 18n thudmg dimg: B8 Quang Kién

3. Bi danh: Khong

4. CMND/CCCD/ H6 chidu sé: 019084000638 Cdp ngay: 04/09/2024  tai: B4 Cong An

5. Gidi tinh: v Num [N

6. Ngdy théng nim sinh: 09/09/1984

7. Noi sinh: Xa La Hién, huyén V6 Nhai, tinh Thii Nguyén

8. Qude tich ghe: Viét Nam

9. Quédc tich hidn nay: Viét Nam

10. Dén tdc: Kinh' Ton gido: Khéng

11. Nguyén qudn: X& Tn Huong, huyén Ninh Giang, tinh Ha Duong

12. Pia chi thuong trd theo b khdu: T4 8, phudng Gia Sang, TP Thai Ngayén, tinh Thai Nguyén

13. Dia chi thuomg tréi theo CMND: T4 8, phudmg Gia Sang, TP Thai Nguyén, tinh Thii Nguyén

14. Dia chi thudng trt lién nay: Té 8, phudng Gia Sang, TP Thai Nguyén, tinh Théi Nguyén

15. Nigdy vito oo quan Nha nude (ndu ¢o): v, '

16. Ngdy vao Dang (néu 1a dang vién): 20/09/2010 _

17. Ngdy tham gia c4e 0An the: ... e resrssssssssssssssesssssmsssssasne s

18, 8¢ trikdmy cdng tde: Tat chinh

19. Tén ctia 16 chire dai dién (nu c6): Cong ty C8 phin thuong mai Cao Bic

20. Dia chi cia t§ chic uy quyén dai dién: 88 70, dudmg Hodng Viin Thu, TP That Nguyén, tinh
Théi Nouyén

21. $6 ¢ phan ¢4 nhén dang s hitu tai TISCO: 0 <8 phin

2. 86 ¢é phin duge uy quyén dai dién tai TISCO: 0 cd phin

3. Trink d6 hoc vén: 12/12

24. Trinh d chuyén mén (ghi 18 khod hoc): Cir nhin Ké {odn - Khéa 2008-2013 - Dai hoc kinh t
v& quin tri kinh doanh Thai Nguyén.

25. Trinh d6 ngoai ngtt: Tiéng Anh

I

26. Qud trinh cdng tAc (néu tém tit noi cdng tie, chirc vy, nghé nghilp tir ndm 18 twéi):



STT | Khoing thoi gian Céng ty/To chie cong tie Chire vy niim giir
= i T i T
[ 2003-2005 Cong ty ¢o phan thuong mai Théi Nhan vién phy kho
1‘ Hung
2 2005-2007 Céng ty TNHH TM Théi Hung Nhén vién giao nhan, ban cin
3 2007-2017 Céng ty b phin thuong mai Thdi Nhin vién giao dich ngfin hang
Humg '

4 2017-2020 Cong ty CP TM Cao Bic Phé Téng giam dbc
5 2017- Nay Céng ty CP TM Cao Bic Tdng gidm dbe

27. Khen thudng: Khéng

28. Ky ludt: Khong

29, Chirc vu cong tée hién nay: Téng giam dbc — Céng ty b phin thuong mai Cao Bic/ kiém pho
ban Phdp ché, Cang ty ¢ phén thuong mai Théi Hung.

30. Hanh vi vi pham phap ludt (néu ¢6): Khdng

IL. MOT QUAN HE GIA BINH (B4, me, vo (chong), anh chi em ruét, con)

| e Hp va tén Tubi Noi cong tde Chiie vy
quan hé ' '
Béde | P& Quang Nhung D3 mit
Me dé | Bui Thi Nhiém 75 | Céngty XD s | Nghi huu
Vo | HA Thi Thanh Nga | 40 | Céngty CPTM Thai Hung NV Viin phong
Contrai | B3 Minh Khang 13 | Trudmg THCS Nha Trang Hoce sinh
Con trai | D& Minh An 8 Trudmg TH 915 Gia Sing Hoc sinh
- Chigi B Thi Naoc Thily | 51 ,T;‘:“E Trgeng, Elvie: Thg #1s Budn bin
" Anhtral | DB Quang Trung 49 | Céng ty Nhém Séng Hong Ky su
Chy gdi D6 Thi Nedn 46 | Dong Xodi — Binh Phude Nong déin
Chi gai | P Thi Thiy Nga 44 | La Hién - V& Nhaj Thai Nguyén Néng déan

1. CAM KET TRUOC PHAP LUAT:

Cam két khéng vi pham cée quy dinh ciia phdp ludt hién hinh va chiu trach nhidm trude
phﬁp ludt vé& ban khai nay.

‘{AL nhén! Thai Nguyén, ngay 25 thang 04 néim 2025,
il Ngugi khai
, ,,/’”‘_) ( Ky, ghird ho tén)

.

B ¢ - VG

F{ i T J - ’7')6‘ P&icu‘r’/t/ }:’LCH

Ghi Clis

L Xde nhdn eida thii tredng co guan néu ed nhdn dang lim vide tai phdp whin hojie UBND x4, plarcmg nei ed nhin ding
kb hg khdu thudng trii (néu cd nhén khdng lim vige tai phap nhén).



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: 35 /TIEGTTN Thai Nguyen, April. 8., 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the approval of the Separate Financial Statements for the accounting period
from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation '

General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to Article 139 of the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH 14, passed
by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on the Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen
Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation on April 15,
2021;

Pursuant to the Separate Financial Statements for the accounting period from
January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, which have been audited,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation the
Separate Financial Statements for the accounting period from January 1, 2024, to
December 31, 2024, as follows:

The key financial indicators are as follows:

NO. | INDICATORS UNIT gimg Bﬁ?ﬁg}: | DECREASMO)

-1 | ASSETS 10,141 10,536 395

1 | Current Assets. FG 2,578 3273 695
Including: "

~ Cash and cash equivalents ! 110 177 66

- Short-term Financial Investments - 9

- Short-term trade Receivables ! 1,085 1,246 161

- Inventories " - 1,331 1,773 442

- Other Assets " 51 69 18

.2 | Non-Current Assets. ]ifil;?;))n 7,563 7,263 =300
Including: !

- Long-term trade receivables " 61 64 3

- Fixed assets " 441 388 -53

- k(;;legt—sterm Work-in-progress " 6,630 6.370 260

- Long-term Financial Investments " 291 301 11

- Other Long-term Assets " 141 141 0




I | RESOURCES 10,141 10,536 395
1 | Liabilities Bilion 8,459 8,983 524
Including: " .
- Long-term Liabilities " 2,445 2,63 185
finance loase obligaions ' 2451|253 8
- Short-term Trade Payables " 949 1,597 648
- Advances from Customers " 9 21 12
- ‘Taxes and Other Payables to the " 16 16 1
State Budget
- Other Payables " 2,591 2,184 -406
+ Payables to Employees : 77 65 -12
+ Short-term Accrued Expenses : 2,136 1,757 -379
+ Short-term Unearned Revenue ! 0 0 0
+ Short-term Provisions 13 2 -11
+ Other Short-term Payables . 342 337 -5
+ Bonus and Welfare Fund " 24 23 0
2 | Owners' equity. g 1,681 1,553 129
Including: "
- Contributed chartered capital " 1,840 1,840 0
- Treasury shares " -0.041 -0.041 0
- Undistributed After-tax Profit: " 89 80 -8
- Development Investment Fund " 30 30 0
- Foreign Exchange Differences " =277 - -398 -120
III. KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
NO. INDICATORS ONIT Dece;(l)lz)zr 31, Dece;{x)ggr 31,
1 | Asset Structure
- Long-term Assets / Total Assets % 69% 75%
- Short-term Assets / Total Assets % 31% 25%
2 | Capital Structure
- Liabilities / Total Capital Yo 85% 83%
- Owner's Equity / Total Capital % 15% 17%
- Liabilities / Owner's Equity % 579% 503%
- Receivables / Owner's Equity % 84% 68%
3 | Liquidity Ratios _
- Quick Ratio Times 0.24 0.21
- Current Ratio " 0.52 0.43
4 | Profitability Ratios
- Net Profit Margin/Total Profitability Ratio % -0.08% -1.74%
- Net Profit Margin/Net Revenue % -0.05% -1.32%
- Net Profit Margin/ Owner’s Equity % -0.54% -10.50%




IV. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS

NO. CONTENT m‘?ﬁf?ﬂ%}
1 Revenue from Sales of Goods and Services 15,411.66
2 Deductions from Revenue 0
3 Net Revenue from Sales of Goods and Services 15,411.66
4 Cost of Goods Sold' 15,127.11
5 Gross Profit from Sales of Goods and Services: 284,547
6 Financial Income 19,278
7 Financial Expenses 98,930
Including: Interest Expenses: 108,271
8 Share of Profit (Loss) from Associates and Joint Ventures
9 Selling Expenses: 50,777
10 General and Administrative Expenses 218,173
11 Net Profit from Business Activities -64,056
12 Other Income 83,123
13 Other Expenses 18,399
14 Other Profit 64,724
15 Total Accounting Profit Before Tax: 0.668
16 Current Corporate Income Tax Expense: 9,053
17 Net Profit After Corporate Income Tax: -8,384

According to the audit opinion, except for the effects related to Phase II project and
the mineral exploitation rights fee, the separate financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation as at December 31, 2024, as well as its financial performance and cash flows
for the financial year ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with the applicable
Vietnamese Accounting Standards and regulations on the preparation and presentation of
separate financial statements.

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above; 2 B
- Members of the BOD, BOS; Py

- Shareholders;

- General Director of the Coporatiorn;

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn;
- Branches and departments of the Corporation;
- Filed at: VT, (200 copies).

TG~

Xuan Da



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC
THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL

JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

sé: 40 /TT-GTTN

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Thai Nguyen, April.38., 2025

PROPOSAL

- Regarding the abpro’val of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the accounting period

from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock

Corporation

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to Article 139 of the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QHI4, passed
by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;
- Pursuant to the Charter on the Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen

Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation on April 15,

- 2021;
Pursuant to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the accounting period

from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, which have been audited;

~ The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the accounting period from January 1, 2024,
to December 31, 2024, as follows:

I. The key financial indicators are as follows:

: EGINNING | ENDING | INCREASE (+)
NO. INDICATORS UNIT | pATANCE | BALANCE | ;DECREASE ()
Billion
1 ASSETS VND 10,252 10,350 138
' Billion
1 Current Assets. VND 2,216 2,725 509
Including: !
| - Cash and cash equivalents " 117 178 61
- Short-term Financial Investments 0 9 g
- Short-term trade Receivables ! 629 663 34
- Inventories ' : 1,417 1,805 388
- Other Assets " 53 71 18
: Billion
2 | Non-Current Assets. VND 8,036 7,665 -371
Including: "
|- Long-term trade receivables K 61 64 3
- Fixed assets " 1,158 1,045 -114
- Long-term Work-in-progress "
Assets 6,630 6,370 -260
- Long-term Financial Investments ! 19 19 0
- Other Long-term Assets ! 168 167 -1




Il | RESOURCES Pl 10252 10,390 138
1 | Liabilities e 8,545 8,811 266
Including: i
- Long-term Liabilities Y 2,527 2,630 103
Finance lease obligations. " 2,774 2866 92
- Short-term Trade Payables " 611 1,074 463
- Advances from Customers ’ 9 21 12
Swtz;f;)];eida;ﬁ Other Payables to the i 71 73 5
- Other Payables i 2,603 2,192 -411
+ Payables to Employees " 85 71 -14
+ Short-term Accrued Expenses " 2,136 1,758 -379
+ Short-term Unearned Revenue L 0 0.005 0.005
+ Short-term Provisions % 345 338 -8
+ Other Short-term Payables 13 2 -11
+ Bonus and Welfare Fund P 24 23 -0
2 | Owners' equity. e 1,708 1,579 -128
Including: "
- Contributed chartered capital g 1,840 1,840 0
- Treasury shares i -0.041 -0.041 0
- Undistributed After-tax Profit: ] 95 87 -8
- Development Investment Fund i 30 30 0
- Foreign Exchange Differences " =277 -398 -120
- Non-controlling Interests ] 20 21 1
III. KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
NO. INDICATORS UNIT ]);1“,“';(‘}‘2’3" 2“;:’2"65’;"
1 | Asset Structure
- Long-term Assets / Total Assets % 74% 78%
- Short-term Assets / Total Assets % 26% 290
2 | Capital Structure
- Liabilities / Total Capital % 85% 83%
- Owner's Equity / Total Capital o 15% 17%
- Liabilities / Owner's Equity % 558% 500%
- Receivables / Owner's Equity % 46% 40% |
3 | Liquidity Ratios
- Quick Ratio Lén 0.15 0.13
- Current Ratio " 0.44 0.37
4 | Profitability Ratios
- Net Profit Margin of the Parent Company/Total
Profitability Ratio % -0.08% -1.72%
- Net Profit Margin/Net Revenue 0% -0.08% -1.85%
- Net Profit Margin/ Owner’s Equity % -0.53% -10.34%




IV. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS

NO. | CONTENT (Bﬁi‘]l:fg%g)
1 Revenue from Sales of Goods and Services 10,601.238
3 Deductions from Revenue : 0.000
3 Net Revenue from Sales of Goods and Services 10,601.238
4 Cost of Goods Sold 10,260.736
5 Gross Profit from Sales of Goods and Services: 340.502
6 Financial Income 19.281
7 Financial Expenses 140.848
Including: Interest Expenses: 139.610

8 Share of Profit (Loss) from Associates and Joint Ventures
9 Selling Expenses: 51.007
10 | General and Administrative Expenses 230.016
11 Net Profit from Business Activities (62.088)
12 Other Income 84.741
13 Other Expenses 18.428
14 | Other Profit 66.313
15 | Total Accounting Profit Before Tax: 4.225
16 | Current Corporate Income Tax Expense: 11.899
17 | Net Profit After Corporate Income Tax: (7.675)
- Net Profit After Tax of the Parent Company (8.384)
- Net Profit After Tax Attributable to Non-controlling

Interests 0.710

According to the audit opinion, except for the effects related to Phase II project and
the mineral exploitation rights fee, the Consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation as at December 31, 2024, as well as its financial performance and cash flows
for the financial year ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with the applicable
Vietnamese Accounting Standards and regulations on the preparation and presentation of

Consolidated financial statements.

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients:

- As above;

- Members of the BOD, BOS;

- Shareholders;

- General Director of the Coporatiorn;

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn;

- Branches and departments of the Corporation;

- Filed at: VT, (200 copies). '
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ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: 41 /TTr-GTTN Thai Nguyen, April .18, 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the Profit Distribution for 2024
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to Article 135 and 139 of the Law on FEnterprises No.
59/2020/QH14, passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of

Vietnam on June 17, 2020, : _
Pursuant fo the Charter on the Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen

Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation on April 15,
2021; '

Pursuant to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the accounting
period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, which have been audited:

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation
the proposal for the profit distribution for 2024 as follows:

I. Business Performance Resulits:

1. Total Accounting Profit Before Tax for 2024:

- Separate Financial Statements: - VND 668,280,248
- Consolidated Financial Statements: VND 4,224,683,774
2. Corporate Income Tax Expense: _

- Separate Financial Statements: ) VND 9,052,747,442
- Consolidated Financial Statements: : VND 11.899.423.035
3. Net Profit After Corporate Income Tax for 2024:

- Separate Financial Statements: - VND -8,384,467,194
- Consolidated Financial Statements; - VND -7,674,739,261

Including: Net Profit After Tax of the Parent Company

VND -8,384,467,194
4. Accumulated Undistributed Net Profit as of the End of the Previous Year
- Separate Financial Statements: VND 88,880,777,819
- Consolidated Financial Statements: VND 94,971,448,653

1



5. Accumulated Undistributed Net Profit as of December 31, 2024:

- Separate Financial Statements: VND 80,496,310,625
- Consolidated Financial Statements: VND 86,586,981,459

I1. Profit Distribution:

According to Point ¢, Clause 2, Article 135 of the 2020 Law on
Enterprises:

“2..Dividends for common shares are determined based on the realized net
profit, and the dividend payment is made from the company's retained earnings. A
Jjoint-stock company may only pay dividends on common shares when the
Jollowing conditions are met:

...........................

c) Immediately after paying all dividends, the company must still ensure it
can fully pay its due debts and other liabilities.”

As of December 31, 2024, the company has an overdue debt of VND
2,345.03 billion related to the project loan, for which no repayment source has
been identified (Principal Debt: VND 1,076.07 billion; Interest Debt: VND
1,268.96 billion)

Therefore, the Board of Directors reports to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Company
that, in accordance with the aforementioned legal regulations, the company does
not meet the conditions to distribute dividends to shareholders..

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Members of the BOD, BOS;

- General Director of the Coporatiorn;
- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiom;
- Branches and departments of the Corporation;

- Shareholders; {’{;_,J.,‘ o 10,

[‘)\'.rl\ \U
’*f c& PHAN "‘

- Filed at: VT, (200 copies). \\ (1 \M’ THEP ]iq% s
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL

JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Independence - ¥Freedom - Happiness
No.: 42 /TTr-GTTN Thai Nguyen, April. 102025
' ' PROPOSAL

Regarding the Approval of the 2025 Business and Development Investment Plan
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 _
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Charter on the Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation on April 15, 2021;

Pursuant to the results of the implementation of the 2024 business production
and development investment plan of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation;

Pursuant to market conditions and the company's capacity to carry out business
activities in 2025.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation
several key targets for the 2025 business production and development investment
plan as follows:

I. Some key business production plan targets for 2025, include:

NO. INDICATORS UNIT 2025 PLAN
1 | Industrial Production Value Billion NVD . 9,991
5 Blast Fu_mace Pig Iron Tons 175,000
Production
3 | Steel Billet Production " - 255,000
4 | Rolled Steel Production " - 730,000
5 | Rolled Steel Sales " 730,000
6 | Total Revenue Billion NVD 14,190
7 | Profit before tax ) 10.686
| ' Million VND/
8 | Average salary person/month 10.405
9 | Total Average workforce Person 3,197

In 2025, the global situation is expected to remain complex and unpredictable,
particularly due to the prolonged trade war over tariffs and ongoing geopolitical
conflicts, which continue to impact supply chains and the prices of raw materials for
production. Therefore, the Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting of
Shareholders authorize the Board to proactively consider various options and adjust
the 2025 business production plan targets as necessary, in line with actual
circumstances, to ensure the best possible business performance.

1



II. Development Investment and Procurement Plan, Fixed Asset Upgrading
Plan for 2025:

1. Development Investment Plan:

In 2025, in addition to continuing to implement the directives of the relevant
authorities regarding the resolution of existing issues related to the Phase 2
Expansion Project of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, the
company will proceed with ongoing projects in the field of mineral exploitation to
ensure a stable supply of raw materials for production. The specific projects are as
follows:

Unit: Billion VND

NO

Project/Category
Name

Project
Type

Total
Investment

Capital Structure

2025 Disbursement Plan

Owner's
Equity

Loans

Total

Owner's

Equity Loans

Ongoing Projects

8,757.91

999.784

7,758.123

35.0

35.0 0

Renovation and
Production
Expansion - Phase
2 Project - Thai
Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock

Corporation

Group

8,104.91

787.78

Tl 112

20

20 0

South Lang Cam
Underground
Bituminous Coal
Mining Project

Group

180

54

126

5.0

5.0 0

North Lang Cam
(Am Hon Area)
Underground
Bituminous Coal

Mining Project

Group

450

135

315

10.0

10.0 0

Exploration,
Expansion and
Upgrading Project
of D mountain (De
mountain) Mine,
Nam Hoa
Commune and Cay
Thi Commune,
Dong Hy District,
Thai Nguyen
Province

Group

8.0

8.0




NO

Project/Category
Name

Project
Type

Total
Investment

Capital Structure

2025

Disbursement Plan

Owner's
Equity

Loans

Total

Owner's

Equity Loans

Expansion and
Upgrading Project
of Ore Mountain
(Deep Level Ore
Mountain) Mine,
Trai Cau Town,
Dong Hy District,
Thai Nguyen
Province

Group

16,0

10,0

Exploration and
Upgrading Project
of Diamond Mine,
Cay Thi Commune,
Dong Hy District,
Thai Nguyen
Province

Group

5,0

5,0

11

New Projects
(None)

0

0

0

0

0 0

Total

8.757,91

999,754

7.758,123

35,0

35,0 0

2. Investment Plan for Procurement and Upgrading of Fixed Assets:

Based on the requirements to maintain stable production activities, enhance
business efficiency, and the company's financial capability, it is proposed that the
General Meeting of Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors/Executive Board
to decide and direct the implementation of investment procedures and carry out the
procurement and upgrading of fixed assets within their authority. This must be done
in compliance with legal regulations, the company's Charter of Organization and
Operation, as well as the company's internal rules and regulations. Details are as

follows:
Unit: Billion VND
Total Disbursement Plan for
NO o 2025
Item Name Investment
. v Owner's | Loans/
alue Total .
Equity ; Others
Investment Items for Procurement and
I Fixed Asset Upgrading (Ongoing Projects) 53-8 . 5526 | 2119 | 3407
Consulting, Topographic and Geological
Survey; Construction Drawing Design for the
! Tailings Storage Dam at Tien Bo Iron Ore 73 744 744 0
Mine
) Exploration and Reassessment of the Resource 35 20 20 0
Reserves at Don Vang Quartzite Mine, Phu Tho ) o T
3 | Procurement of a Spectral Analyzer 2.0 2.0 0.6 1.4
4 | Procurement of a Nitrogen Air Compressor 6.82 - 6.82 2.05 4.77

3




Disbursement Plan for

Total
NO Item Name Investment 2025
v Owner's | Loans/
alue Total .
Equity | Others
5 | Procurement of a Screw Air Compressor 1.1 1.1 0.33 0.77
Renovation of the DCS System at the 3200m*/h
6 y 7.9 7.9 2.37 5.53
Oxygen Station
Installation of a Surface Water Extraction and
7 Jow Xh 1.0 1.0 1.0 0
Utilization Monitoring System
Renovation and Upgrade of the Continuous
8 | Casting Machine at Luu Xa Steel making 27.0 27.0 5.4 21.6
Factory
Investment Items in the Form of Asset
II . 791.0 791.0 22.20 | 768.80
Leasing
Renovation and Upgrade of the Steel Section
1 | Rolling processing Line - Luu Xa Steel Rolling 111.0 111.0 22.20 £8.80
Factory (Phase 1)
Renovation and Replacement of the Electric
2 | Arc Furnace with a Basic Oxygen Furnace 100.0 100.0 0 100.0
(BOF) at Luu Xa Steel making Factory
3 Renovation and Capacity Upgrade of Blast g p ,
Furnace No. 3 at the Iron making Factory Han PO L i
Total (I +IT) 846.82 | 846.26 | 43.39 | 802.87

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for approval of the key business

production targets and the development investment plan for 2025 as stated above; At

the same time, it is proposed to authorize the Company’s Board of Directors to

approve the 2025 Business Production Plan and Development Investment Plan of the

Company./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipients:
- As above;
- Members of the BOD, BOS;

- Shareholders;

- General Director of the Coporatiorn;,

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiomn;
- Branches and departments of the Corporation;
- Filed at: VT, (200 cop1es)
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VIET NAM STEEIL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION .

No.: 43 /TTr-GTTN : Thai Nguyen, April 302025

_ PROPOSAL
Regarding the Signing of a Contract with Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
. Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises 2020, passed by the National |
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to Article 293 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31,
2020, of the Government, detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the
Law on Securities,

- Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 15, 2021,

Pursuant to the "Regulations on the Operation of the Board of Directors of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation,” issued under Decision No. 08/QD-
GTIN dated April 19, 2022, by the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation; |

Pursuant to the Company's projected business and production plan for 2025,

In recent years, Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company has been a regular
supplier of materials and raw inputs for TISCO's production, ensuring product quality
and offering competitive pricing. Thai Hung is recognized as a reputable supplier.
Additionally, Thai Hung serves as a Tier 1 distributor within TISCO's steel product
distribution system, boasting extensive experience in steel and metallurgical product
trading. In 2024, TISCO's total rolled steel consumption reached 747,739 tons, with
Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company consuming 237,832 tons of both consumer
- and project goods, achieving 95.13% of the ass1gned target (250,000 tons), and
113.37% compared to 2023.

General Assessment of TISCO Steel Distribution Performance by Thai Hung
Trading Joint Stock Company in 2024

- Market Activities: Thai Hung was assigned 21 distribution areas. During
implementation, Thai Hung, with its extensive experience, conducted market
activities in a highly professional manner. They assigned staff to closely monitor each
distribution area and have built long-term relationships with customers in these areas.
The company has done well in supervising the market and developing new areas.
They also organized good customer care activities. Among the assigned distribution
areas, some faced difficulties, particularly the northwest provinces such as Lao Cai,
Yen Bai, Son La, and Dien Bien. These challenges contributed to Thai Hung's failure
to meet the sales target for 2024.



- Regarding the implementation of policies and mechanisms: Thai Hung has
always fully complied with TISCO's regulations on pricing, commercial discounts,
and is always ready to share business opportunities with customers as well as share
risks when the market prices decrease.

- Regarding infrastructure: Thai Hung has a good infrastructure for warehouses
and transportation vehicles that meet the needs of the market, especially in regions
with long distances from the company.

According to the business production plan for 2025, the company plans to
consume 730,000 tons of steel products. Of this, it has signed a contract with Thai
Hung Trading Joint Stock Company to consume 260,000 tons of construction steel
for residential and project use, and products such as SAE steel and structural steel will
be executed based on actual demand. In addition to signing contracts for product
consumption, the company also enters into contracts for the purchase of materials and
supplies with Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company to support TISCO’s
production. Thus, the total value of contracts signed with Thai Hung Trading Joint
Stock Company in 2025 is estimated to exceed 35% of TISCO's total asset value as
recorded in the 2024 financial statements.

Currently, Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company is a major shareholder of
the Company, holding more than 20% of the shares, and has two members in the
Board of Directors. Therefore, according to the provisions of Article 167 of the 2020
Enterprise Law, with the contract value exceeding 35% of the total asset value of the
Company as recorded in the latest financial statement, it must be approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

Since the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders is usually held in April every
year, while contracts with distributors (including Thai Hung) are typically signed
starting from January each year, in order to assist the Company’s Executive Board in
proactively developing and implementing business plans and signing purchase and
sale contracts, the Board of Directors respectfully submits for approval by the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation in 2025 the following contents:

+ Approve the transactions and contracts for purchasing materials and selling
steel products in 2025 with Thai Hung Trading Joint Stock Company from January 1,
2025, to December 31, 2025. This includes a contract for steel consumption with a
quantity of 260,000 tons of construction rebar and project rebar; SAE steel products,
and shaped steel will be executed based on actual demand. The implementation period
is from January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2025, with the selling prices and policy
mechanisms following the general regulations of the Company.

+ Assign the Board of Directors of the Company to review and approve contracts
for purchasing materials and selling steel products for 2026 with a value greater than
35% of the total assets of the Company as stated in the most recent financial report.
The implementation of these contracts should be reported at the next General
Shareholders’ Meeting for approval according to legal regulations.

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above;

- Members of the BOD, BOS; /79

- Shareholders; /fy

- General Director of the Coporatiorn;
- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiomn; \2\ GANG TH EP ) ,I
- Branches and departments of the Corporation; \ -,3("\. THAINGUYEN /37
- Filed at: VT, KHKD (160 copies). N4 e
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No. &4 /TI-GTTN , Thai Nguyen, April. 1.0 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the signing contracts with Thai Trung Steel Rolling Joint Stock Company

General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporatzon

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises 2020, passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;
| Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 15, 2021,
Pursuant to the "Regulations on the Operation of the Board of Directors of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation,” issued under Decision No. 08/0D-
GTTN dated April 19, 2022, by the Board of Directors of Thai Nguyen lron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation,
Based on the projected production and business plan for 2024 of Thai Nguyen
Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation (TISCO).
Thai Trung Steel Rolling Joint Stock Company (Thai Trung) is a subsidiary of
TISCO, with TISCO holding a 93.68% stake in Thai Trung. In 2024, TISCO and
Thai Trung signed a contract for the purchase and sale of steel billet and rolled steel
products. According to the agreement, all Steel billet are supplied by TISCO to Thai
Trung, and all rolled steel products produced by Thai Trung are purchased by TISCO
for distribution. The selling price of steel billet to Thai Trung is calculated based on
‘the average price of steel billet TISCO buys externally and produces in-house. The
purchase price of finished steel is calculated from the billet purchase price plus
rolling costs. The rolling costs for each period are reviewed and agreed upon by both
parties in the monthly contracts. The implementation of the contract with Thai Trung
in 2024 has been carried out smoothly, ensuring revenue, market share for TISCO
steel, employment, and efficiency for Thai Trung. The results of implementation in
2024 are as follows:
- The billet steel provided by TISCO:
+/ The output of steel billet provided by TISCO to Thai Trung in 2024 is
1398,869.277 tons, corresponding to TISCO's finished steel demand and within Thai
Trung's production capacity.

' +/ Quality of steel billet: The entire quantity of billet steel provided by TISCO
ensures quality for Thai Trung to roll various product types according to TISCO's.
production order.

- The steel products produced by TISCO at Thai Trung:

+/ The steel production volume of TISCO at Thai Trung in 2024 was
395,634.092 tons, which was in line with TISCO's production order requirements and -
corresponded to the volume of steel billet supplied by TISCO.

+/ 'The product quality: Ensured to meet the quality standards as per the
regulations.

- The actual steel production volume of TISCO at Thai Trung in 2024 was
395,634.092 tons, compared to the 2024 plan of 275,000 tons, an increase of

approximately 43.8%. This was due to better-than-expected steel consumption for
TISCO in 2024.



The total value of contracts signed and executed with Thai Trung in 2024
exceeds 35% of the total asset value of TISCO as recorded in the financial report.

According to the 2025 business production plan, TISCO expects to consume
730,000 tons of various steel products. It is anticipated that in 2025, TISCO will
produce 355,000 tons of steel products at Thai Trung. Therefore, in 2025, TISCO will
need to sign a contract to sell approximately 360,000 tons of steel billets to Thai
Trung, and in return, sign a contract to purchase approximately 355,000 tons of steel
products produced by TISCO at Thai Trung. The total value of contracts signed with
Thai Trung in 2025 exceeds 35% of TISCO's total asset value as recorded in the
financial report.

Currently, TISCO 1s the largest shareholder of Thai Trung with a capital
contribution ratio of 93.68%. Therefore, in accordance with the provisions of the
2020 Enterprise Law and Clause 4, Article 293 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP of
the Government, which details certain provisions of the Securities Law, "The
company must conduct transactions with related businesses involving company
management individuals," any transaction with a value exceeding 35% of the
company's total assets as recorded in the most recent financial report must be
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation (TISCO).

Since the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders is typically held in April
each year, while contracts with Thai Trung are usually signed from January each
year, in order to help the company's management proactively build and implement
business plans and sign contracts, the Board of Directors respectfully submits to the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint
Stock Corporation (TISCO) for approval of the following contents:

+ Approve the signing of the purchase and sale contracts for 2025 with Thai
Trung from January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2025, including the following
contracts: the steel billet purchase and sale contract and the finished steel purchase
and sale contract. For the steel billet purchase and sale contract, both parties will sign
a framework agreement for 2025, and the monthly purchase price will be the average
price of steel billets that TISCO purchases externally, produces internally, or
processes for sale to Thai Trung for use in that month. For the finished steel purchase
and sale contract, both parties will sign a framework agreement for 2025, and the
monthly purchase price will be the price of steel billets plus the rolling cost.

+ Assign the Board of Directors of the Company to review and approve the
contract with Thai Trung Steel Rolling Joint Stock Company for 2026, with a value
exceeding 35% of the total assets of the Company as stated in the latest financial
statements. Report the implementation of the contract at the next General
Shareholders' Meeting for approval according to legal regulations.

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above;

- Members of the BOD, BOS; ot T .“ , WN

- Shareholders; P ’{- b ':-5 ,\\ 5

- General Director of the Coporatiorn; et CONG i Y \ '

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn; ;‘I:' ¥ [ "‘{) PHAN

- Branches and departments of the Corporation; = | GANG THERE

- Filed at: VT, KHKD (160 copies). ”\"% *THAINGUYE! ‘/ =)
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC

THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

0. 4% 7TTr-GTTIN

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

 Thai Nguyen, April. 8. 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the approval of the salary and remuneration levels for the Board of Directors,

CEQ, Deputy CEO, Board of Supervisors, and Chief Accountant of the Company

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron
and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders

on April 15, 2021;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 59/NQ-GTTN dated Aprzl 19, 2024, of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation regarding the salary and remuneration levels for management in 2024,

Based on the business results of 2024 and the business plan for 2025 of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation;

The Board of Directors respectfully presents to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for
approval of the salary and remuneration fund for the company's management in 2024
and the plan for 2025 as follows:: -

I. Actual salary and remuneration for the year 2024

_ Unit: VND
.. Planned Planned Sa[ary Actual salary
Position- number Month Entire year Month Entire year
of people :
A. Salary 1,650,000,000 1,650,000,000
a) General Director _ 1 26,500,000 318,000,000 26,500,000 318,000,000
b} Deputy General Director 2 22,500,000 270,000,000 22,500,000 540,000,000
¢) Member of the Board of Directors 1 22,500,000 180,000,000 | 22,500,000 180,000,000
o (Receiving salary from-April 2024)
d) Chief Accountant 1 21,000,000 252,000,000 21,000,000 252,000,000
d) Executive Head of the Board of 1 21,000,000 | 252,000,000 | 21,000,000 | 252,000,000
Supervisors :
¢) Executive Member of the Board of | 9,000,000 { 108,000,000 | 9,000,000 | 108,000,000

Supervisors

(The salary above does not include holiday bonuses, Lunar New Year bonuses, or any allowances)

B. Remuneration 460,000,000
a) Non-Fxecutive Chairman of the 1 '

Board of Directors 6,000,000 72,000,000 6,000,000 72,000,000
b) Non-Executive Vice Chairman of 1

e Boaed of Direofors 5,500,000 |. 22,000,000 5,500,000 22,000,000

{Receiving remuneration from January to April 2024)

¢) Non-Executive Member of the
Board of Directors

5,000,000

180,000,000

5,000,000

180,000,000

d) Non-Executive Member of the Board
of Supervisors

3,500,000

126,000,000

- 3,500,000

126,000,000




II. Salary and Remuneration Plan for 2025

1. Salary and Remuneration (The salary of the management above does not
include holiday bonuses, Lunar New Year bonuses, allowances, efc.)

In 2024, due to significant challenges faced by the Company, although it made a
profit, the profit did not meet the set target. Therefore, the salary of the management
is only proposed to be settled at the planned amount. (Although the salaries of
employees increased by 2% compared to the planned salary). Applying Circular
28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH, Article 12, and Article 13 to build the salary fund and the
planned salary level for 2025, it is proposed to increase the average salary by 10%
compared to the actual amount in 2024. (The planned production output for 2025 is
expected to increase by 13% compared to the 2024 production plan, and there will be
a positive profit).

Amount Total amount
Position (I}"IE(? ellc:: (VND/person/ | for the entire
.p P month) year

A. Salary 1,924,800,000
a) General Director 1 29,500,000 354,000,000
b) Deputy General Director 2 25,000,000 600,000,000
C). Executive Member of the Board of 1 25.000,000 300,000,000
Directors
d) Chief Accountant 1 23,000,000 276,000,000
d) Executive Head of the Board of 1 73.000.000 976.000.000
Supervisors L g
¢) Executive Member of the Board of 1
Sapsivikrs 9,900,000 118,800,000
B. Remuneration 378,000,000
a) Non-Executive Chairman of the Board 1
o Ditechons 6,000,000 72,000,000
b) Non-Executive Member of the Board of 3
Directors 5,000,000 180,000,000
c) Non-Executive Member of the Board of 3
Supervisors 3,500,000 126,000,000

2. For managers participating in the Board of Directors, CEO, Deputy CEQ, and
Board of Supervisors members who work directly, the Company will pay a monthly
salary based on their full-time managerial position as mentioned above, without
receiving monthly allowances for concurrent roles.

In the case of managers holding concurrent positions and receiving professional
salaries, they will be entitled to allowances as per the regulations.

3. In addition to the monthly settled salary and allowances, the executive
managers are also entitled to additional salary for holidays, Lunar New Year, cost-
saving and C2, other allowances as per the company's decision.

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above; = ﬁﬁAIRMAN

- Members of the BOD, BOS; s 1, 0170755 N

- Shareholders; yors A

- General Director of the Coporatiorn; 12/ « “\'(’ T" \

- Deputy General Directors of the Coporatiorn; i : . uC HAN |

- Branches and departments of the Corporation; (= \GANG THER )

- Filed at: VT, TCLP (Hg. 10 coples) / \ | TF{ INGUY:J ,»=‘=/
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VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: 144/TTr-GTTN Thai Nguyen, April. 1.0 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the Selection of the Auditing Company to Audit the Financial Statements for 2025
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

To: General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14, passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel
Joint Stock Corporation, approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on April 15,
2021;

The Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation the proposal regarding
the selection of an independent auditing company to audit the company’s Financial
Statements for 2025 as follows:

1. Requirements for the Independent Auditing Company:

- Legally operating in Vietnam and included in the list of auditing companies eligible to
provide auditing services for 2025 as published by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam;,

- Reputable for the quality of its audits, capable of meeting the company’s
requirements regarding the schedule and completion deadline for the audit, with audit fees
appropriate to the quality and scope of the audit.

2. Proposal from the Board of Supervisors:

To ensure convenience in selecting the auditing company, the Board of
Supervisorsrespectfully proposes that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
authorizes the Board of Directors of the Company to choose one of the five (05) reputable
auditing companies, as follows:

1. AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited (AASC);

2. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) Vietnam Limited;

3. Deloitte Vietnam Limited (Deloitte);

4. Ernst and Young Vietnam Limited (E&Y);

5. KPMG Vietnam Limited (KPMG) (KPMG);

Conduct the audit of the 2025 Financial Statements of the Company.

Respectfully submitted for the General Meeting’s approval./.

Recipi :
eapiants ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
- Shareholders of TISCO; HEAD T EBOA OF SUPERVISORS

- Filed at: VT, Board of Supervisors.
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

T D UYEN IRON AND STEEL Independence - Freedom - Happiness

/NQ-GTTN Thai Nguyen, April 26, 2025

RESOLUTION
of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprise No. 59/2020/QH 14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation,

Pursuant to the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of
Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation, dated April 26, 2025,

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Joint Stock Corporation,

RESOLVES:

Article 1. To approve the business production results, activities of the
Corporation's Board of Directors in 2024 in Report No. /BC-GTTN dated April
2025 of the Corporation's Board of Directors, the direction of operations, business
production plan, and investment for 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock
Corporation and Proposal No. /TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the Corporation's
Board of Directors with the following main contents:

1. Results of implementing the main targets in 2024:

2024 ACTUAL
N INDICATOR UNIT 2023 | 5024 PLAN cCOW%RISCON =
0. i ompare ompared
ACTUAL Total 02023 | to2023
Actual Plan
A B [ 1 2 3 4=3/1 5=3/2
Industrial production Billion
1 | value (actual price) VND 9,450 9,494 10,602 112% 112%
Metallurgical coke
2 | production Ton 109,276 115,000 88,960 81% 77%
Blast furnace pig iron
3 | production “ 185,449 200,000 197,984 107% 99%
g |Seiblletpronuenat [ 282,900 | 200,000 | 277,505 98% |  139%
Rolled steel ,
5 | production o 640,646 | 645,000 752,201 117% 117%
Rolled steel
6 | consumption = 639,070 645,000 747,739 117% 116%
Total revenue Billion
7 VND 13,401 12,953 15,514 116% 120%
Profit before tax Billion
8 VND -176.621 15.000 0.668 4%
Budget contribution Billion
9 VND 215.015 | 221.915 187.329 87% 84%
i || SYEREEORICE Person 3399 | 3,335 3,248 95.6 97.6
Million
VND/
11 | Average salary person/ 9.2 9.034 9.9 107.6 110
month




2. Plan targets and major investments for 2025:
a) Business production plan:

No. INDICATOR UNIT 2025 PLAN | NOTES
Industrial production value Tlion VNT
1 (actual price) _ Billion 9,991
Metallurgical coke
2 production « 90,000
Blast furnace pig iron
3 production ¥ 175,000
4 | Steel billet production « 255,000
5 Rolled steel production “ 730,000
6 Rolled steel consumption “ 730,000
7 | Total revenue (Separate) Billion VND 14,190
g | Profit before tax (Separate) Billion VND 10,686
9 Budget contribution Billion VND 201
10 | Average workforce Person 3,197
Miilion
11 | Average salary VND/person/month 10.405

In 2025, the global situation will continue to evolve in complex and
unpredictable ways, especially the trade war on tariffs and ongoing geopolitical
conflicts affecting supply chains, prices of raw materials for production at an
unpredictable level. Therefore, the General Meeting of Shareholders unanimously
authorizes the Board of Directors, during implementation, to proactively consider
plans and adjust the 2025 business production plan targets in accordance with the
actual situation to ensure the best business results.

b) Development investment plan as per Appendix 01 attached to this Resolution.

Article 2. To approve the Report of the Board of Supervisors of Thai Nguyen
Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation regarding performance results for 2024 and
operational direction for 2025. Audit Report on the Corporation's 2024 Financial
Statements in Report No. /BC-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the Board of
Supervisors of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

Article 3. To approve the audited Separate Financial Statements for the
accounting period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in Proposal No.

[TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the Corporation's Board of Directors.

Article 4. To approve the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
accounting period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, in Proposal No.
/TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the Corporation's Board of Directors.

Article 5. To approve Proposal No. /TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the

Corporation's Board of Directors regarding the profit distribution for 2024 of Thai
Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation.

13/=% 0 o=\



Article 6. To approve Proposal No. /TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the
Corporation's Board of Directors regarding the signing of contracts with Thai Hung
Trading Joint-Stock Company.

Article 7. To approve Proposal No. /TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the
Corporation's Board of Directors regarding the signing of contracts with Thai Trung
Steel Rolling Joint Stock Company.

Article 8. To approve the realized salary and remuneration fund of the Board of
Directors, Board of General Directors, Board of Supervisors, and Chief Accountant
of the Corporation for 2024 in Proposal No. /TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025 of the
Corporation's Board of Directors and the salary and remuneration levels for the Board
of Directors, Board of General Directors, Board of Supervisors, and Chief
Accountant of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation for 2025 as per
Appendix 02 attached.

Article 9. To unanimously authorize the Board of Directors to select one of five
auditing ~ companies (AASC  Auditing  Firm Company  Limited,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Deloitte, Ernst and Young, and KPMG) to audit the 2025
Financial Statements of the Corporation as proposed by the Board of Supervisors in
Proposal No. /TTr-GTTN dated April , 2025.

Article 11. Implementation:

1. The Board of Directors and General Director of the Corporation are
responsible for monitoring, urging, and organizing the implementation of the
Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 in accordance with
the law and the Corporation's Charter.

2. The Corporation's Board of Supervisors is responsible for supervising and
inspecting the activities of the Board of Directors and General Director of the
Corporation in implementing the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2025 to ensure compliance with the law and the Corporation's Charter.

Article 12. This Resolution was fully approved by the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation in the
hall and takes effect from April 26, 2025./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE 20235 ANNUAL
- Securities Comunission, Hanoi Stock Exchange; GENERAL MEETING OF
Shareholders; SHAREHOLDERS

- Members of the BOD, BOS of the Corporation; CHAIRPERSON

- General Director, Deputy General Directors of the '

Corporation;

- Units, departments of the Corporation;
- www, tisco.com.vn,
- Filed: VT, TK (T06 cpies).

CHAIRMAN OF THE CORPORATION'S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Nghiem Xuan Da
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(Attached to Resolution No.

VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION
THAINGUYEN IRON AND STEEL JOINT
STOCK CORPORATION

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

A{p’Fendix 1: LIST OF DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT PLAN FOR 2025
of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation

1. Development investment plan:

/NQ-GTTN dated April 26, 2025 of he Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation)

In 2025, in addition to continuing to implement the direction of competent

authorities on handling the remaining issues and obstacles of the Renovation and

Production Expansion of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Company - Phase 2 Project, the

Corporation will continue to implement ongoing projects in the field of mineral

exploitation to meet the raw material needs for the Corporation's production.

Specifically as follows:

Unit: Billion VND

No.

Item/Project name

Project
classification

Total
investment

Capital structure

2025 disbursement plan

Owner's
equity

Loan
capital

Owner's

Total .
equity

Loan
capital

Ongoing projects

8,757.91

999.784

7,758.123

35.0 35.0

Renovation and
Production Expansion of
Thai Nguyen Iron and
Steel Company - Phase 2

Group A

§,104.91

787.78

7,317.12

20 20

South Lang Cam
Underground
Bituminous Coal
Mining Project

Group B

180

54

i26

5.0 5.0

North Lang Cam (Am
Hon area) Underground
Bituminous Coal Mining
Project

Group B

450

135

315

10.0 16.0

Exploration project for
expansion and upgrading
of Nui D (Nui De), Nam
Hoa and Cay Thi
commumnes, Dong Hy
district, Thai Nguyen
province

Group C

3.0

8.0

=0
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Project Total

Capital structure

2025 disbursement plan

No. Item/Project name o . .
classification | investment

Owner's Loan
equity capital

Total

Owner's | Loan
equity | capital

Expansion and upgrading
project of Nui Quang

5 (Nui Quang deep level),
Trai Cau town, Dong Hy
district, Thai Nguyen
province

Group C 10.0 10.0

Exploration project for
expansion and upgrading
¢ |of Kim Cuong mine, Cay
Thi comimune, Dong Hy
district, Thai Nguyen
province

Group € 5.0 5.0

II | New projects (none) 0 0

Total 8,757.91 : 999.784 | 7,758.123

350 35.0 0

2. Plan for investment in procurement and upgrading of fixed assets:
Based on the requirements to maintain stable production operations, improve

business production efficiency, and the Corporation's ability to arrange capital

sources, the General Meeting of Shareholders is proposed to authorize the Board of

Directors/Board of Management to decide, direct the implementation of investment

procedures and deploy implementation for items of investment in procurement and

upgrading of fixed assets within their authority, ensuring compliance with legal

regulations; the Charter of organization and operation; regulations and rules of the

Corporation. Specifically as follows:

Unit: Billion VND

the tailings pond dam - Tien Bo Iron Mine

2025 disbursement plan
Total
No. Item name — mvestlme Owner' Loan
nt value Total s fosens
equity p
Ongoing items for investment in procurement
I and upgrading of fixed assets 53.82 5526 | 2119 1 34.07
Consulting on topographic and geological
1| surveys; preparation of construction drawings for 75 7.44 7.44 0
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2025 disbursement plan

Total
No. Item name investme Owner' 0
nt value Total S caeiat:; |
equity p
o | Exploration and reassessment of resource 75 20 2.0 0
reserves of Don Vang - Phu Tho Quartzite Mine
3| Procurement of Spectroscopic Analyzer 2.0 2.0 0.6 1.4
4 | Procurement of Nitrogen Compressor 6.82 6.82 2.05 471
5 | Procurement of Screw Compressor 1.1 1.1 0.33 0.77
6 Renovationlof DCS system for the 3200m®/h 79 79 ' 237 553
oxygen station
7 Instaliationi of ‘surface water exploitation and 10 1.0 1.0 0
usage monitoring system
8 Renf)vation apd upgrading of the cont'inu()us 27 27 54 21.6
casting machine at Luu Xa Steel Making Factory
Il | Investment items through asset leasing 791.0 791.0 | 222 768.8
Renovation and upgrading of the shaped steel
1} rolling line - Luu Xa Steel Rolling Factory 111.0 111.0 | 222 88.8
(Phase 1)
Renovation and replacement of electric arc
2 | furnace with basic oxygen furnace (BOF) at Luu 100.0 100.0 0 100.0
Xa Steel Making Factory
3 Renovation and capacity expansion of Blast 580.0 580.0 0 520.0
Furnace No. 3 at the [ron Smelting Plant
Total (I + 1) 846.82 | 846.26 | 43.39 | 802.87

ON BEHALF OF THE 2025 ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING OF

SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRPERSON

= G G

CHAIRMAN OF THE CORPORATION'S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Nghiem Xuan Da



VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION
THAI NGUYEN IRON AND STEEL JOINT
STOCK CORPORATION

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Appendix 02: Salary and remuneration levels of the Board of Directors, General

Director, Deputy General Directors, Board of Supervisors, Chief Accountant for 2025
(Attached to Resolution No. /NO-GTTN dated April 26, 2025 of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 2025 of Thai Nguyen Iron and Steel Joint Stock Corporation)

1. Salary, remuneration:

Rate per
umber | doron | Tota anoual
month)
A. Salary 1,924,800,000
a) General Director 1 29,500,000 354,000,000
b) Deputy General Director 2 25,000,000 600,000,000
c) Executive BOD member 1 25,000,000 300,000,000
d) Chief Accountant 1 23,000,000 276,000,000
¢} Executive Head of Supervisory Board 1 23,000,000 276,000,000
) Executive BOS member 1 9,900,000 118,800,000
B. Remuneration 378,000,000
a) Non-executive Chairman of BOD i 6,000,000 72,000,000
b) Non-executive BOD member 3 5,000,000 180,000,000
¢) Non-executive BOS member 3 3,500,000 126,000,000

2. For managers participating in the Board of Directors, General Director,
Deputy General Directors, Board of Supervisors working directly, they will be paid
monthly salaries by the Corporation according to their full-time management
positions as above, without receiving monthly remuneration for concurrent positions;

In case managers hold concurrent positions and receive professional salaries,
they will receive remuneration as prescribed.

3. In addition to the salary and remuneration settled monthly, full-time
Managers are also entitled to additional salary distribution during holidays, Tet, cost
savings and C2, and concurrent position allowances according to the Corporation's
decision.

ON BEHALF OF THE 2025 ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRPERSON

CHAIRMAN OF THE CORPORATION'S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Nghiem Xuan Da



